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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM"”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF
HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been established as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a high
investment risk may be attached. In particular, companies may list on GEM with neither a track
record of profitability nor any obligation to forecast future profitability. Furthermore, there
may be risks arising out of the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM and the business
sectors or countries in which the company operates. Prospective investors should be aware of
the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only
after due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM
mean that it is a market more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on
GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main

Board and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on
GEM.

The principal means of information dissemination on GEM is publication on the Internet website
operated by the Stock Exchange. Listed companies are not generally required to issue paid
announcements in gazetted newspapers. Accordingly, prospective investors should note that
they need to have access to the GEM website at www.hkgem.com in order to obtain up-to-date
information on GEM-listed issuers.

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited takes no responsibility for the contents of this report, makes no
representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaims any liability whatsoever for any
loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors of Inno-Tech Holdings Limited collectively and individually accept full
responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Growth Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“GEM Listing Rules”) for the
purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The directors having made all reasonable
enquires, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief: (1) the information contained in this
report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading, (2) there are no other matters
the omission of which would make any statement in this report misleading, and (3) all opinions expressed
in this report have been arrived at after due and careful consideration and are founded on bases and
assumptions that are fair and reasonable.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Ms. Wong Yuen Yee (Chairman)

Mr. Wong Kwok Sing (Deputy Chairman)
Mr. Wong Yao Wing, Robert

Mr. Lam Shiu San

Ms. Chow Wai Man, Grace *

Ms. Wu Wai Yee, Annis *

* Independent non-executive Directors

HONORABLE CHAIRMAN

Ms. Chen Po Sum, M.B.E.

COMPLIANCE OFFICER
Mr. Wong Yao Wing, Robert

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
Mr. Wong Yao Wing, Robert
Ms. Wong Yuen Yee

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Li Kar Fai, Peter, AHKSA, FCCA

QUALIFIED ACCOUNTANT

Mr. Li Kar Fai, Peter, AHKSA, FCCA

AUDITED COMMITTEE MEMBERS
Ms. Chow Wai Man, Grace
Ms. Wu Wai Yee, Annis

AUDITORS
KPMG

Certified Public Accountants

LEGAL ADVISERS TO THE COMPANY
Chiu & Partners
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REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House
2 Church Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS

Room 2303

Tung Wai Commercial Building

109-111 Gloucester Road

Wan Chai

Hong Kong

COMPANY WEBSITE
http://www.it-holdings.com

Note:

part of this annual report.

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

The Bank of Bermuda Limited

6 Front Street

Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Rooms 1901-5

19th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
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NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the Annual General
Meeting (the “Meeting”) of the shareholders of Inno-
Tech Holdings Limited (the “"Company”) will be held at
Room 2303, 23rd Floor, Tung Wai Commercial Building,
109-111 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong on 31
July 2003 at 10:00 a.m. for the following purposes:

1. To receive and consider approval of the audited
financial statements and reports of the directors
(the "Directors”) and the auditors of the Company
for the year ended 31 March 2003;

2. (@) To re-elect the following persons as the
Directors:

() Mr. LAM Siu San
(i)  Ms. WU Wai Yee, Annis

(b) To authorise the board of Directors (the
“Board") to fix the Directors’ remuneration;

3. To re-appoint Messrs KPMG as the Company's
auditors and authorise the Board to fix their
remuneration; and

4. To consider and, if thought fit, pass the following
resolutions as Ordinary Resolutions of the
Company:

“THAT:

(a) subject to paragraph (c) of this Resolution,
and pursuant to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Growth
Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited, the exercise by the
Directors during the Relevant Period (as
hereinafter defined) of all the powers of
the Company to allot, issue and deal with
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(b)

(©

R R

additional shares in the capital of the
Company or securities convertible into
Shares, or options, warrants or similar rights
to subscribe for any Shares and to make or
grant offers, agreements and options which
might require the exercise of such powers
be and the same is hereby generally and
unconditionally approved;

the approval in paragraph (a) of this
Resolution shall be in addition to any other
authorisation given to the Directors and
shall authorise the Directors during the
Relevant Period to make or grant offers,
agreements and options which might
require the exercise of such powers after
the end of the Relevant Period;

the aggregate nominal amount of share
capital allotted or agreed conditionally or
unconditionally to be allotted (whether
pursuant to an option or otherwise) by the
Directors pursuant to the approval in
paragraph (a) of this Resolution, otherwise
than pursuant to:

(i)  a Rights Issue as herein after defined;
or
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(i)

(i)

(iv)

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
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the grant or exercise of any option
under any share option schemes of
the Company or any other option
scheme, or similar arrangement for
the time being adopted for the grant
or issue to officers and/or Participants
of the Company and/or any of its
subsidiaries of shares or rights to
acquire shares in the capital of the
Company; or

any scrip dividend or similar
arrangement providing for the
allotment of shares in lieu of the
whole or part of a dividend on shares
of the Company in accordance with
the memorandum of association and
bye-laws of the Company and the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda
(the "Companies Act”) in force from
time to time; or

any issue of shares in the Company
upon the exercise of any subscription
rights or conversion under the terms
of any warrants of the Company or
any securities of the Company which
are convertible into shares of the
Company, shall not exceed the
aggregate of 20% of the aggregate
nominal amount of the share capital
of the Company in issue on the date
of passing of this Resolution; and the
authority pursuant in paragraph (a)
of this Resolution shall be limited
accordingly.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
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for the purpose of this Resolution:

“Relevant Period” means the period from
the date of the passing of this Resolution
until whichever is the earliest of:

(i)  the conclusion of the next annual
general meeting of the Company;

(i) the expiration of the period within
which the next annual general
meeting of the Company is required
by the Companies Act of the
Company, or any other applicable law
of the Bermuda to be held; and

(iii)  the passing of an ordinary resolution
by the shareholders of the Company
in general meeting revoking or varying
the authority given to the Directors
by this Resolution.

“Rights Issue” means an offer of shares in
the Company, or offer or issue of warrants,
options or other securities giving rights to
subscribe for shares open for a period fixed
by the Directors to holders of shares in the
Company on the register on a fixed record
date in proportion to their holdings of
shares (subject to such exclusion or other
arrangements as the Directors may deem
necessary or expedient in relation to
fractional entitlements, or having regard to
any restrictions or obligations under the
laws of, or the requirements of, any
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jurisdiction applicable to the Company, or
any recognised regulatory body or any stock
exchange applicable to the Company).”

As special business, to consider and, if thought
fit, pass with or without amendment(s) the
following resolution as Ordinary Resolution:

MTHATII

(a) subject to paragraph (c) of this Resolution,
the exercise by the Directors during the
Relevant Period (as hereinafter defined) of
all powers of the Company to repurchase
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited ( the “Stock Exchange”) or any other
stock exchange on which the securities of
the Company may be listed and recognised
by the Securities and Futures Commission
and the Stock Exchange for such purpose,
and otherwise in accordance with the rules
and regulations of the Securities and Futures
Commission, the Stock Exchange or any
other stock exchange as amended from time
to time and all applicable laws in this regard,
be and the same is hereby generally and
unconditionally approved;

(b) the approval in paragraph (a) shall be in
addition to any other authorisation given to
the Directors and shall authorise the
Directors on behalf of the Company during
the Relevant Period to procure the Company
to repurchase its Shares at a price
determined by the Directors;

(c) the aggregate nominal amount of shares of
the Company which may be repurchased
by the Company pursuant to the approval
in paragraph (a) of this resolution during
the Relevant Period shall not exceed 10%
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of the aggregate nominal amount of the
issued share capital of the Company as at
the date of the passing of this Resolution;
and

(d) for the purpose of this Resolution, “Relevant
Period” means the period from the date of
the passing of this Resolution until
whichever is the earliest of:

(i)  the conclusion of the next annual
general meeting of the Company;

(i) the expiration of the period within
which the next annual general
meeting of the Company is required
by the Companies Act of the
Company, or any other applicable
laws of Bermuda to be held; and

(iii)  the passing of an ordinary resolution
by the shareholders of the Company
in general meeting revoking or varying
the authority given to the Directors
by this Resolution’

As special business, to consider and, if thought
fit, pass with or without amendment(s) the
following resolution as Ordinary Resolution:

“THAT conditional upon Resolutions Nos. 4 and
5 set out in the notice convening this Meeting
being duly passed, the general mandate granted
to the Directors of the Company to exercise the
power of the Company to allot, issue and deal
with additional shares pursuant to Resolution No.4
set out in the notice convening this Meeting be
and is hereby extended by the addition thereto
of an amount representing the aggregate nominal

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
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amount of the share capital which may be allotted EERBEZE -MREXERE

or agreed conditionally or unconditionally to be S [ B A 16 1 3l 1R 1 e 8 Ko g%

allotted and issued by the Directors pursuant to TZBRAEEE  MABER

such general mandate of an amount representing RARBBEARGBESMHSE

the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital SERABZRFRLZRERED Z

of the Company repurchased by the Company RARIRANEEE B K

under the authority granted pursuant to Resolution PR 2 iR 8B T 15 HiA R

No.5 set out in the notice convening this Meeting, NARARZREBBERZ

provided that such amount of shares so purchased EEITRALEEZ10% - |

shall not exceed 10% of the aggregate nominal

amount of the issued share capital of the

Company as at the date of the passing of this

Resolution.”
By Order of the Board AEE® G INNO-TECH
Inno-Tech Holdings Limited EERARLA T ? “LA D‘ lTN EGS
Wong Yuen Yee TE E A # R
Chairman HH R L

11
Hong Kong, 27 June 2003 EB _TE=FRAZ-++tH ANNUAL
REPORT

Head office and principal place of business: BHERRFELSZMEY - 02/03F#K
Room 2303 EE
Tung Wai Commercial Building 1
109-111 Gloucester Road HELITE109-11158
Wan Chai REEEKRE
Hong Kong 2303 %
Registered Office: A FEE -
Clarendon House Clarendon House
2 Church Street 2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11 Hamilton HM 11

Bermuda Bermuda
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A shareholder entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting
is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and on a poll
vote instead of him at the Meeting. A proxy need not
be a shareholder of the Company but must be present
in person to represent the shareholder.

In order to be valid, this form of proxy, duly executed,
together with the notarially certified power of attorney
(if any) or other authority (if any) under which it is
executed, must be lodged with Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited, at Rooms 1901-5, 19th
183 Queen's Road East,

Wanchai, Hong Kong not less than 48 hours before the

Floor, Hopewell Centre,
time fixed for holding of the Meeting or any
adjournment thereof.

Completion and return of this form will not preclude
you from attending and voting at the Meeting if you so
wish.

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed
from 28 July 2003 to 30 July 2003 (both days
inclusive) during which period no transfer of shares of
the Company will be effected. In order to qualify for
attending the Company’s Meeting, all shares transfer
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged with the Company's branch share registrars
in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited, Room 1901-5, 19th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen's Road East, Hong Kong not later
than 4:00 p.m. on Friday, 25 July 2003 for registration.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
E

TO OUR SHAREHOLDERS

On behalf of the board of directors of Inno-Tech Holdings
Limited (the "Company”) (the “Board”), | am pleased to
present the first annual report of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) since the
Company's listing on the Growth Enterprise Market
("GEM") of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the "Stock Exchange”) on 12 August 2002.

For the year ended 31 March 2003, the Group recorded
a steady growth in turnover to HK$25.66 million, an
increase of 31.8% as compared with that of the previous
year. Net profit, reduced by 30.5% to HK$7.56 million,
resulting in basic earning per share of HK$0.0169.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 March 2003.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Over the year under review, while the global economy
as a whole was in doldrums, the economic growth in
China continued to thrive. With its major market in China,
the Group reported an unprecedented business
performance in the first three quarters of the financial
year. However, a major customer of the Group has
delayed its projects, our performance in the fourth
quarter fell short of our projected target. The surge in
sales turnover was however more than offset by the
increase in expenses, which included the increase in
administrative and operation expenses, marketing and
promotion expenses as a result of our newly listing
status, as well as the expenses for research &
development (“R&D").

The Group has always been focusing on collaborating
with China’s property developers in the provision of
Intranet design for residential communities and
e-property management software consultancy services.
The strategy paid off with a satisfactory performance
recorded in the year. In December 2002, the Group
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concluded a business cooperation with Kingswick
(Guangzhou) Property Consultants Limited (&M &%
FEZMAEMRAR), aleading property agent in China,
to jointly develop an intelligent community. To build up
the Group's marketing strength, the Group has been
planning to set up representative offices in Beijing and
Guangzhou.

i-Panel is an interactive terminal developed by the Group.
The i-Panel version 3.0 was finished with its development
phase and went into production in the year. To time the
rapid market changes, we are planning to develop of a
new version that harnesses the wireless technology.

It has been one of our marketing strategies to develop
and build up our customer base in the residential
communities. We have even planned our clientele to
include hospitals and schools. This clientele of variety
will extend to a mixed customer base and diversify away
the risk of relying on customers of residential property.
During the year, we provided a hospital in Shanghai
with our software application design service and
implemented the installation of i-Panel.

BUSINESS PROSPECTS

The outbreak of Atypical Pneumonia as a severe
epidemic in Hong Kong and China as soon as we
stepped into 2003 had dealt a significant slowdown to
the economic activities between and in the two adjacent
places. Nevertheless, we believe the derived impact will
only be temporary. As a matter of fact, the epidemic
has already been put under control. And we have begun
to see that projects developed by our customers have
resumed to normality. With the sustainable demand for
quality residential community, the Group will endeavor
to develop new products for this ever-changing market.
The Board is confident about our future prospects.
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Cultivating and accumulating a strong clientele in small
communities has been one of the business strategies
of the Group. And in its pursuance, we have endeavored
to exploit our i-Panel products for community
installations. We are confident that the contemplated
strategy will manifest in achievement.

We have envisioned that the recent outbreak of the
Atypical Pneumonia will also bring us business potential.
Medical institutions across China have begun evaluating
their existing medical management system, and the
Chinese government will soon implement reformation
in its medical system. In this respect, the demand for
the provision of software application design in medical
market is going to increase. To position ourselves as the
forerunner in this market segment, we have begun
actively conducting researches and developing services
and products for this niche market. With the
management’'s connections in China’s medical market,
we believe this can become our new source of income.

Leveraging on the good and close relationship with
property developers, the Group seeks to provide some
intelligence community related products for adding value
to real properties.

Going onward the Group will continue exploring
collaborating opportunities with large property developers
in China to edge up its competitiveness. The
geographical emphasis will be in the region of Pearl
River Delta. Hong Kong will expedite its economic
integration with the Pearl River Delta. We believe this
will bring along a refreshed landscape in the region, in
where property development should continue to grow.
R&D on expanding the functionality of i-Panel will be
continued, which should embrace integrating the security
system and the automation system. In the interim report,
development of the wireless i-Panel has been reported
to fare satisfactorily. We believe this product can fit into
a wide spectrum of clientele, contributing to the Group's
future growth.
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CONCLUSION

Over the past years, corporations in Hong Kong
continued its struggle in the highly competitive
environment. Looking ahead Hong Kong may continue
to see the impact caused by the emergence of
unforeseeable force majeure, such as Atypical
Pneumonia, which tends to loom into adversity never
encountered before. However, we can always find
opportunities even in adverse circumstances. With the
agility of the Board in its business acumen, we are
confident that we can remain competitive in the changed
circumstances. With our dedicated and relentless staff
force we would persevere and thrive in encountering
any adversity that may surface in the future.

All'in all, I would like to take this opportunity to express
my gratitude to the Board, the management and other
employees for their effort and contribution. | would also
thank our shareholders and business partners for their
continuous support to the Group.

Wong Yuen Yee
Chairman

23 June 2003
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Audited consolidated income statement for the years ended 31 March:

N

BE-RA=ZTALFEZEEREARAEK

S

i

2003 2002 2001
“ETZF —TT_F —TT-F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FTAET FAET
Turnover ERE 25,655 19,461 1,252
Gross profit EM 21,377 17,300 965
Other revenues H At e A 115 1 42
Research and development i 7 & B g
expenses F (492) (240) (1,347)
Marketing and 35 1 B &
promotion expenses EEAX (2,957) (1,013) (1,380)
Administrative expenses THRAX (8,205) (3,059) (2,941)
Finance costs M ER (431) (33) -
Profit/(loss) before taxation BR # AR R
(B#E) 9,407 12,956 (4,661)
Taxation 1A (1,844) (2,074) 753
Profit/(loss) attributable A% R AR & A
to Shareholders: (B#E) 7,563 10,882 (3,908)
Basic earnings/(loss) FREKXRRF
per share (in HK cents) (BHE) OBI) 1.69 2.83 (1.02)
Audited consolidated net assets as at:
RZBZRERGEEEFRE -
31 March 31 March 31 March
2003 2002 2001
—E%=% —EE-F —EF—F
=A =A =H
=+-8 =+-8 =+-8
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT FTAET FAET
Non-current assets IEMBEE 16,122 2,104 1,114
Current assets mEEE 36,392 16,485 346
Current liabilities mE AR (19,087) (5,712) (1,394)
Non-current liabilities FERBEE (2,163) (319) -
Shareholders’ funds R RE & 31,264 12,558 66
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

T E B & W

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group recorded a net profit of approximately
HK$7.56 million for the year ended 31 March 2003
(2002: HK$10.88 million), representing basic earnings
per share of 1.69 HK cents (2002: 2.83 HK cents).

For the year ended 31 March 2003, the Group's audited
consolidated turnover amounted to approximately
HK$25.66 million (2002: HK$19.46 million). The
Directors consider such performance was satisfactory
despite the global economic downturn.

Upon comparing the total expenses in 2002, the total
expenses in 2003 increase by about HK$7.34 million
which are mainly attributable to increase in staff costs
and marketing and promotion expenses.
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OPERATIONAL REVIEW

The Group continues to implement aggressive strategy
in the provision of residential intranet design and
software application consulting services in China. In order
to meet the demand of the market, the Group has
purchased system administration and content
management software as to support additional local data
operating centre ("LDOC") installed at the customers’
sites and premises. In view that the global economic
environment was declining, the Group decided to tighten
its expenditure control and thus postponed the relocation
of the Group's head office and no additional leased line
is hired. However, the economic environment of China
continues to grow, the Group is planning to set up

representative offices in Guangzhou and Beijing of China.

The Group also completed the design of i-Panel V3.0
and commenced to launch during the year. To enhance
a more economic price of i-Panel V3.0, the research &
development (“R&D") of the Group has refined the i-
Panel V3.0 to a cost effective version. Meanwhile, the
Group is conducting the design of i-Panel V4.0 which
will be integrated with additional features supporting
wireless LAN, personal digital assistant connection,
unified messaging system and remote video monitoring.

Research and development

The Group continues to search for suitable hardware
vendors in order to minimise the cost. The Group also
conducts its research through subcontracting its software
development activities to external software developers.
The Group's strategy is still focused on developing and
building up our own customer base in the residential
communities and seeking to expand our clientele to
include hospitals and schools in the residential
communities. Besides, our R&D team had implemented
the home security into i-Panel V3.0 during the year.

)54
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Sales and Marketing

During the year under review, the Group concluded a
business cooperation with Kingswick (Guangzhou)
Property Consultants Limited (BM& &R EEXABR
‘A 7)), a leading property agent in China, to jointly
develop an intelligent community. The Group will
continue to seek and identify services and information
providers in order to explore different market
opportunities.

Liquidity and financial resources

The Group is financially healthy in terms of its liquidity
and net debt position. As at 31 March 2003, the net
current assets of the Group were at a healthy level of
approximately HK$17,305,000 (2002: HK$10,773,000).
Out of the current assets as at 31 March 2003,
approximately HK$11,476,000 (2002: HK$5,355,000)
were cash and bank balances. The current ratio of the
Group as at 31 March 2003 and 31 March 2002 were
191% and 289% respectively. Despite a decrease in
the ratio, the Group's, liquidity position is considered
satisfactory in maintaining its daily business operation.
As at 31 March 2003 bank overdrafts and short term
bank borrowings in aggregate amounted to approximately
HK$13,753,000 (2002: HK$3,502,000). The Group has
obtained short term borrowings from financial institutions
to finance its general working capital. Net debt (i.e.
total bank borrowings less cash and cash equivalent
and pledged deposits) as at 31 March 2003 is
approximately HK$2,277,000 (2002: HK$Nil) and
accordingly net debt gearing ratio (i.e. net debt/net
assets) as at 31 March 2003 and 31 March 2002 were
7.3% and Nil respectively showing a relatively low level
of debt financing from financial institutions.

Capital structure

There has been no change in the Company's capital
structure since its listing on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange.
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Use of proceeds from the Company’s initial public

offering

The proceeds from the Company's issue of new shares
at the time of its listing on the GEM in August 2002,
after deduction of related issue expenses, amounted to
approximately HK$18.2 million. Of this amount,
approximately HK$12 million has been utilised up to 31
March 2003 and has been applied in accordance with

i)

i

ERANRPrRABEZHMERERR

ARBIR_ZTEE-_FNAEBIERE
MBI RN 2 TSR BELMNKR A
B3 17 X #9518,200,0005% 7T -
%) 12,000,0008 TEREZE —
ZE-F=_A=+—HBIHHHE TR
BERERMBIEZAEZHAUT

the proposed applications set out in the prospectus as Gk
follows:
Business Plan as
stated in the
prospectus from
24 July 2002
(“Latest Practicable
Date”) to
31 March 2003
ERER
ME_FF_%
tBZ+MmAE
((R#ETTAE]
E_F%z%
ZA=Z+-HZ
SBHBETR Actual Variance Remarks
ZEH EREH BEEE Mt &E
HK$ million HK$ million  HK$ million
BEAT BEAT BEAT
Data operating centre SEEERD 2.00 2.00 - -
i-Panel design and prototyping i-Panel& &t & 2.00 2.00 - -
A B %
Research and development MmERBRM 4.20 4.20 - -
and software development R
Sales and marketing HERT%H 2.40 2.96 (0.56)  The variance
HE is due to
the product
demonstration
cost.
EReER
EmREHA
ARG -
Human resources deployment ANERAR 1.50 0.80 0.70 To save cost,
and office relocation RBAEEDR no office
relocation had
been carried
out during
the year.
REVERA
WERREE
BYRMER -
Total Bt 12.10 11.96 0.14
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There were no material deviations from the intended
use of net proceeds for the year ended 31 March 2003
as disclosed in the interim report of the Company 2002
and the prospectus dated 30 July 2002.

The Directors presently do not anticipate any material
deviation from the intended use of the net proceeds as
disclosed in the interim report of the Company 2002
and the prospectus dated 30 July 2002.

To the extent that the net proceeds are not immediately
applied for the above purposes, it is the present intention
of the Directors to maintain such net proceeds from the
initial public offering as short term deposits with the
financial institutions in Hong Kong until such time as
they are required.

Material acquisitions and disposals during the
year and future plans for material investments
There were no material acquisitions and disposals of
investments by the Group during the year ended 31
March 2003. The Group will continue to look for
possibilities of forming alliances or any investment
opportunities with some strategic partners.

Employee information

The total number of employees (including Directors)
was 13 as at 31 March 2003 (2002: 9), and the total
remuneration for the year ended 31 March 2003 was
approximately HK$7.48 million (2002: HK$3.94 million).
Other benefits provided by the Group to the employees
include medical coverage and share options.

Charges on Group’s assets

Bank deposits of HK$10,000,000 (2002: HK$3,500,000)
as at 31 March 2003 have been pledged against banking
facilities granted to the Group.
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Contingent liabilities HAEE
Up to the date of this report, no material contingent HEAGSHEBH  EFWEHASR
liabilities has been identified by the Directors. ERERSIAEE -
Segmental information TEER
The Group's turnover and operating profit are entirely AREBzEERBRKERMTRE R
derived from the design of residential intranet and EERATEEFEHEZEFPABBER
software application design and development services AREREMRALRAERY
rendered in Hong Kong to customers based in the PRC. b EERA/BARARER MR D HE
Accordingly, the directors’ consider the analyses by ETOHM
business and geographical segments are not required.
Dividend z 2
No interim dividend was paid during the year (2002: RNATIWEPNAFRE NI E SRS
HK$Nil) and the Directors do not recommend the (ZZ2Z2ZF 28T  MEFTE INNO-TECH

payment of a final dividend for the year ended 31 March FREHZEZ _ZTTE=ZF=ZA=+—H T ? ,\LA D‘ lTN EG ;

2003 (2002: HK$Nil). HFEZRBERE(ZEZE_F: T A T
L) o F B 2~ =&
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. PROGRESS WHEN COMPARED
' AGAINST BUSINESS OBIJECTIVES

EE HE X B A B 2 b &,

i oA
For the period from 24 July 2002 (Latest Practicable “EFFtEtRAZ+ WA ([HEAIT
Date) to 30 September 2002: HBRDEZ-FFE_FAA=Z+HLH
L
For the comparison of the business objectives set out ERERERMBCEHBFEKRE
in the prospectus with the actual business progress from ATARE_ZET_FHAA=1+TRHZ
the Latest Practicable Date to 30 September 2002, EREBER LR  F2REARQA
please refer to the Company’s interim report dated 14 RZZETZ_F+—ATHEBEHEZF
November 2002. L -
For the period from 1 October 2002 to 31 March —EFE_F+RA—BHEZFF=H
2003: ZA=Z+—HLEBA :
Business objective as stated in the Actual business progress for
INNO-TECH Prospectus for the period from the period from 1 October 2002
", .. 1o0ctober 2002 to 31 March 2003 to 31 March 2003
E 8 7 K ERERMSE_FET_E+B—HE —_EFE_F+RA—BEZFTEFE=HF
fF 0 CeE=gs=H=+-BALMMZEBAE SAZtH-BLEMEzEREBEE
I 2 4
ANNUAL 1. Data operating centre:
REPORT BEBEMEPLDC
02/03 FRH
. Purchase computers, network equipment . Purchased a system

and servers to support additional LDOC
installed at the customers’ sites and
premises;

BEEK MNEXRBLARSUAIERE
REFPEMNEMEZ BN T EIRLESR
Ly s

administration and content
management software to
support additional LDOC
installed at the customers’ sites
and premises;
BERRERELRAREEHRMG
UXBERERNEFPENKME
RN T EBREED L



PROGRESS WHEN COMPARED .
AGAINST BUSINESS OBJECTIVES

EEREXB BB 2 LB | fl
s

Business objective as stated in the Actual business progress for

Prospectus for the period from the period from 1 October 2002

1 October 2002 to 31 March 2003 to 31 March 2003

EREEMBE-FTT-_F+A—BE —EFE_F+RA—BHEZFFT=H

—EFZHFZ-ZA=ZT+-HBLHEZEHAEE ZRA=E+—-HLHBEZEBREXBEE

. Schedule to acquire additional hardware to . Since the additional LDOC of

be installed at the Group’s new head office the customers’ sites and
so as to provide remote maintenance and premises was not yet ready, so
upgrade services to the customers; and no additional hardware had
THIEBREGRERAEBZHEAHRSE been installed and the Group
B UAREFRHEEERE NIRRT is still using the original head
M office and the Company expects

it will be ready by the fourth
quarter of 2003; and INNO-TECH

mREPENRMEZEMNE | L,
FEBEBFONARE B E 8 B B
g -2 T2k P ZLI R
XY DESEES X ]
o ARRAEMETBEEE L nuaL

POBRR BT =FFEMNER REPORT
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. Hire additional leased line. . Higher band width leased lines
HARBIINERRE - are used and thus no need to

hire additional leased line.
EFFERAEMEREE  AttH
AHBEIINERERE -
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Business objective as stated in the Actual business progress for
Prospectus for the period from the period from 1 October 2002

1 October 2002 to 31 March 2003 to 31 March 2003
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2. i-Panel design and prototyping:
i-Panelsk 5t & IR 8 f 3%

. Commence to design version 4.0 for i-Panel . The R&D team conducted the

that will be integrated with additional design of i-Panel Version 4.0;
features supporting wireless LAN, personal HE B2 E1Ti-Panel 4.0
digital assistant connection, unified ZRE
messaging system and remote video

INNO-TECH monitoring;

HOLDINGS el .

o 15 & 5Ti-Panel 4.0hR - i-Panel 4.0hR # AN

E oAl o7 K AHAMINEE - AR EARLAN ~ EA B

= b= A BIEER S BMRASREERRKE

I 2 6

ANNUAL . Refine the outlook design of i-Panel; and . To reduce the manufacturing

REPORT MR i-Panel/hEERET - & costs of i-Panel Version 3.0, the

02/03 %% R&D team refined the i-Panel

Version 3.0 to a cost effective
version; and

A& T R K i-Panel 3.0hk 2 £ &
A - B B 2 2R R i-Panel
3.0MR B & TF & B AN B s 2 hiR

/NN
. Commence to launch version 4.0 of i-Panel. . Scheduled to launch version
F 48 # [ i-Panel 4.0k ° 4.0 of i-Panel. The Company

expects the production can be
commenced by the fourth
quarter of 2003.

Z P Hi-Panel 4.0 - AR
ABEHIR_ZETE=FFNF
BIRE °
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Business objective as stated in the
Prospectus for the period from

1 October 2002 to 31 March 2003
EREEMBE-FTT-_F+A—BE
—EFZHFZ-ZRA=ZT-BHLHEZEHAERE

Actual business progress for

the period from 1 October 2002
to 31 March 2003
—EFE_F+RA—BHEZFFZ=H
ZRA=E+—-HBLHBEZzZEBRERBEE

3. Research and development and software
development:
L R L
. Subcontract the Group’'s software . A due diligence study of a

development activities of the e-property
management system to software

software house was in progress.
The R&D team continues to

developers; carry out research on suitable
MEHERBOHALAEE CEFYEER hardware vendors in Shanghai, INNO-TECH
Rz HREIE: the PRC and continues to T ?,\LAD‘ lTNEGS
outsource additional software B oA = K
7 R 2 7|

developers;
E#—FKEMGRAETEBH
Ro-MEKLEBERARES Z
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AGAINST BUSINESS OBIJECTIVES
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Business objective as stated in the Actual business progress for

Prospectus for the period from the period from 1 October 2002

1 October 2002 to 31 March 2003 to 31 March 2003

EREEMBE-FTT-_F+A—BE —EFE_F+RA—BHEZFTF=H

“EFCZHFZRAEZT-BLBEZEBER ZRA=E+—-HLHBEZzZEBRERBEE
. Schedule to launch enhanced version for . The actual business

ERP application module;
FFElEE PR ERRE EABRETTRMR

development of the Group was
extended to other intelligence
communities, such as travelling
platform, entertaining platform,
medical, educational and
property platform to broaden
the Group’'s business
opportunities and the Group
found that similar services can
be provided to the above-
mentioned intelligence
communities and therefore the
proposed launch of ERP was
temporary pending;

rEBEEREBRERERE
Hih &= - ik ¥
ACRETE BE HEK
MEFE NWHERAEEZHE
- N ST N M U S
Bt BREHEBECURS  HE
REEEZHEH 2 EEERR

g



PROGRESS WHEN COMPARED .
AGAINST BUSINESS OBJECTIVES

EEREBE B2 LR | 4l

Business objective as stated in the
Prospectus for the period from

1 October 2002 to 31 March 2003
EREEMBE-FTT-F+A—BE
“EFCZHFZAEZ+T-BLBEZEBER

Actual business progress for

the period from 1 October 2002
to 31 March 2003
—EFE_F+RA—BHEZFFZ=H
ZRA=E+—-HBLHBEZzZEBRERBEE

Commence in-house design on e-commerce
transaction enabling application module;
NEBGLHARERGFETHERSEAR
#

Continue to identify suitable hardware and
network equipment compatible with the
Group's e-property management software;
EBYDERAEE  ETMEERT4H&
RHESE N LB RE

Enhance the software capabilities in home
security; and

MBERERETEZEHENEE - K&

Continue to conduct research and
development on application of existing
skillset, technical know-how and products
on other emerging markets.
EBETERRARMER - RlTME K&
Hih¥rEmS 2 Em2 MR -

Provided health software
application and health content
to health communities of the
PRC by modifying the Group’s
existing software modules to
suit the applications as well as
the contents for the health
community;

FREIAEEZREHRMER
M mPEREEBEARRE
EREBMHEREANS - UREE
REBRBCEBEMGEAS

Developed various software
application modules for the
abovementioned fields as to
enrich the Group’s sales
capabilities;

M EMSERENRZ SRR
ARENIERAREE 7 HE B
7

Implemented the software
application of home security
into i-Panel Version 3.0; and
KB R L 2 B & A T Be AN
Ai-Panel 3.0fk K&

Various researches on vendors,
software as well as future
business development were in
progress.

EStihEr  MYMBRBRER
ERSHBHETSENE o

INNO-TECH
HOLDINGS
LI M I TED
E Al E R
F B A =
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PROGRESS WHEN COMPARED
AGAINST BUSINESS OBIJECTIVES
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Business objective as stated in the Actual business progress for
Prospectus for the period from the period from 1 October 2002
1 October 2002 to 31 March 2003 to 31 March 2003
EREEMBE-FTT-F+A—BE —EFE_F+RA—BHEZFTF=H
“EFCZHFZRAEZT-BLBEZEBER ZRA=E+—-HLHBEZzZEBRERBEE
4. Sales and marketing:

HERDHER :

. Continue to seek for suitable services and . Continued to seek suitable

information providers to enrich the content
of the customers’ residential intranet;
EESHREGZRBREAHERNEE
EFEFPRNBHEZAR

. Conduct market promotion and campaign .
to target customers on the benefits of using
the Group’s e-property management
software application;
BRECARNEEEFWEERRATGZ
R MEREFPETMSHERSEE
&

. Continue to organise one symposium or .
promotional event in other major cities in
the PRC;
EESHEXREXEEEDY

services and information
providers to enrich the content
of the customers residential
intranet and continued to
explore different market
opportunities;

HESHES ZRG R E R
R REBRMSEEHE

Cooperated with a property
agent to promote the Group's
i-Panel through its clients
networks;

H-RMEREESE S
HEFHAKXREBARAEEHEZ
i-Panel :

Because of the SARS issues in
the PRC especially Guangdong
province and Hong Kong, the
Group had postponed all its
marketing promotions and
symposium and planed to
organise one symposium in
2004;

HMARPE (CEBREREB)
BEIEHAFH A - NEBLEE
HAf A ™% HEEE & ER
g MR _ZZTHFER
—EEKE



PROGRESS WHEN COMPARED .
AGAINST BUSINESS OBJECTIVES
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Business objective as stated in the Actual business progress for

Prospectus for the period from the period from 1 October 2002

1 October 2002 to 31 March 2003 to 31 March 2003

EREEMSE_FFE_FEF+A—BEZE —EFE_F+RA—BHEZFF=H

—EFZHFZ-ZA=ZT+-HBLHEZEHAEE ZAEZ+-HLEYBZEREBHEE

. Expected to serve an addition of 30,000 . Under discussion with a

household units in the PRC; and property developer regarding a
JE 8 AR B FESMN30,0001E F P IR RIS development project in
& Dongguan, the PRC of

approximately a gross floor area

of 800,000 square meters

which the Company considers

that the project will offer a total

household units of INNO-TECH
approximately 30,000; and T ? ,\LA D‘ lTNEGS
E-RXYEERERNEEE S <TE

H 7 4 4800,000F 53kz  F B A E
rExzxrER  A28% 31NN
BZBEBER/EHAKN30,000 4 NU AL

EFR® + & REPORT

02/03 FRH
. Explore different market opportunities in the . The Company had extended its
application of existing skillset and technical market opportunities to other
know-how. intelligence communities and
MPERIR A B R mME 7 mFEESR will continue to explore
o different market opportunities.

ARRERERAREEME L
HE - WHEERDEER
g%o
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' AGAINST BUSINESS OBIJECTIVES
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W
Business objective as stated in the Actual business progress for
Prospectus for the period from the period from 1 October 2002
1 October 2002 to 31 March 2003 to 31 March 2003
EREEMBE_FTE_F+A—HE —EF_E+A-BEZEFE=H
—EFZHFZ-ZA=ZT-BLHEZEHAERE ZAEZ+-HLEYBZEBREBHEE
5. Office relocation:

MERER :

. Relocate the Group’'s head office to . In view of the economic
accommodate increasing number of staff environment during the 4th
and equipment. quarter of 2002, the Group had
BREAEEERFRINEMEZREE MR tightened its expenditure
e control and thus postponed the

INNO-TECH relocation of the Group's head

HOLDINGS
LI MITED
E oAl 7 R
g B o~ A

I 3 2

ANNUAL
REPORT

02/03 %R

office until fourth quarter of
2002. Instead, the Group is
planning to set up two
representative offices in Beijing
and Guangzhou, the PRC.

MR _ZEZE_FENFE 2L
BREXRE  AEEDKREHR
X EEGER - WERBBBEAR
SEARFRZFEE_ZTT
—FEMNZE - MR EIRI
BN B S R E R R =
B o



DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE .

E 5 kK E B 5

HONORABLE CHAIRMAN

Ms. Chen Po Sum, aged 72, is the honorable chairman
of the Group, she is appointed by the Group on 15
November 2002 and she involve no management and
operation function of Group but with the objective of
further promoting the Group’s image. Ms. Chen possess
extensive experience in the local security market and
holds various position in local companies and governing
bodies such as she is the chairman of Wai Pak Po
Company Limited and the Life Honorary President of
the Institute of Securities Dealers Limited. She is also a
member of Election Committee (financial Services
Sector) for the First Legislative Council of Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region and she is an non-
executive director of for several public companies listed
on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Ms. Wong Yuen Yee, aged 41, is one of the founders,
the chairman and an executive director of the Group.
Ms. Wong is the sister of Mr. Wong Kwok Sing, who is
the chief operation officer and executive Director of the
Company. Ms. Wong is responsible for formulating and
monitoring the Group's overall strategic plan and
development. Ms. Wong graduated from University of
Hong Kong with a bachelor of social sciences degree in
1984 and a master degree in business administration
in 1993. Ms. Wong has over 15 years of experience in
property development and management in both the PRC
and Hong Kong. She worked as a general manager in
HyComm Wireless Limited (formerly known as Plotio
Holdings Limited) for the period from 1985 to 1991.
She was the executive director and board consultant of
Soundwill Holdings Limited in Hong Kong for the periods
from 1993 to 1997 and from 1997 to 1998 respectively.
She was appointed as the director of Land First Holdings
Limited for the period from 1998 to 1999.

B E E

REXRE
LT 725 AKE B
TR BR-FE-FT—ATEA
EAKEEE  URSRAREZE
EREEL(E - EREE—SRER
KERRZAR - RELHEABE
STBZEEER  LEEALAT
REERESERY - PIMBERE
RARERRES B HEHRA R
ERBRE  GAATBENTHE
F-EUARERE AR (2 REBH
KW BRI ZRE - RS BES
B LT ARZFENTES -

HITES

BEoR L 415 AEEAEHA
Z—REFERWITESE  HARAE
ERERVTEFEEBLLEAZR
e mRLTABRIEREEAREZ
ERRBASILER -BXLEEXR
FERNEZ  DRR—ANEER -

N=—FRBEHEMBELTEMRTH
EEBETEM RPEREEYEH

REEESTEEAA TLFER - ®
R—ANRFE- NN FHETE
FER ERBEARRQ A (AT B A&
SEERRFDEFALE  Z05
R—AN=FE-hAEER—-NAN
TtEE-NANFHEEETESH
GEEERARZHAITEERESS
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=
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. Wong Kwok Sing, aged 39, is one of the founders,
the chief operation officer, vice chairman and executive
director of the Group. Mr. Wong is responsible for the
Group's daily operation and customer services, and sale
and marketing activities for promoting the Group's
products and services. Mr. Wong graduated from Shue
Yan College with a high diploma in business
administration in 1986. Mr. Wong has about 16 years of
experience in the IT industry and extensive experience
in marketing, research and business development in the
Asia Pacific Region. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wong
was the executive officer of Bell Technology Ltd. with
principal duties relating to system design, computer
networking, Internet services and computer products
trading for the period from 1989 to 1998. He was the
sales supervisor of Caripac Ltd. with main responsibility
regarding system design and Smart Home solution. In
addition, he played a major role in business
development, particularly in the PRC market, whilst
working with Bell Technology Ltd. and Caripac Ltd.. Mr.
Wong was one of the founders of the portal
"www.b66.com” in 1996 which was well received by
many commercial media companies. Mr. Wong is the
brother of Ms. Wong Yuen Yee, who is the chairman
and an executive Director.

B o5

B B E

HITES 3

HEEEBEE  39m  AEEBEINHA
L—REBERE  BEIFEREHTE
E BEASBEREFREBLEEFRPR
% ARMEBEAEEER KRB 2 H
ERTGBHREZS - ZEXER—NAN
NEEERECER  BEIFER
BARSR c EEEREMBEERE
HWHARFRLR  WREKRKETISHE
E #EREBERITAHZBEEEK
o MMBASKER @ H#ER—HAN
NFEE-NNNFERETEBRES
RARIZHMITEME  TBEAERERR
BT B DHMAERGEEKE
mEH WIS EBESRER A AHE
EXE  HERLGIGEERRER
Kooy BERAEBREBREERA
AIREBRERARHAMBEGRIEER
ERIE LHEHERBEMSIE &
£ &£ BN — XN F OBl W
[www.b66.com] A FT4E ufi (15 A& Bl 3
AZ—) BEXEFEEREARELD -
BAREDEIRRATESTEHR LT
Z M o
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. Wong Yao Wing, Robert, aged 45, is the chief
executive officer and an executive director of the Group.
Mr. Wong Yao Wing, Robert is also the compliance officer
of the Company. Mr. Wong Yao Wing, Robert is
responsible for the Group's corporate management and
strategic planning for the Group's overall business. He
graduated from University of Hong Kong with a master
degree in business administration in 1993. Mr. Wong
Yao Wing, Robert has over 20 years of experience in
the field of information technology and eight years of
experience in lecturing at the Polytechnic University, and
has also been working in commercial sectors for over
10 years as senior management. He also has ample
knowledge of software development and project
management in various industries and has acquired
substantial business and technical knowledge in
telecommunication, Internet, e-commerce and
networking. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wong Yao
Wing, Robert was the president of HealthAnswers Asia
Pte Ltd., and the founder and managing director of Expert
System Co., Ltd. and Expert System Solution Ltd.. Mr.
Wong Yao Wing, Robert joined the Group in January

2001.

B B E

BITESE )

BEHEARE 45 AKETHAE
E BITEFERAQRFERTE 8
EAEEZRAERRASEEEE:

BZRERE - RN—NNL=FEX
REBRE ERIFERELTS
iz REMBESBEESBR-TF
K5 CREBEIAXBRRNE -
TeERERAEAEESERMBAT
FoRRZMEITENEHHERIAR
EREREEANE - TREM - BB
B ETHELBBITERERZE
EREMAE - EMAREER @ &
¥ & % & A HealthAnswers Asia Pte
LdzBBELEBREARAR L AHE
Expert System Solution Ltd.Z &l ## A
REFHLE - FBHEREEN T
—F-AMBERER -
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Continued)

Mr. Lam Shiu San, aged 30, is the chief technology
officer and an executive director of the Group. He is
responsible for monitoring the hardware and software
development of the Group. He is also in charge of all
the technical issue of the Group's projects. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Lam was the technical director of
NetTrend Computer for the period from 1997 to 2000
and was the technical manager of Bell Technology
Limited for the period from 1993 to 1997. He has
approximately 10 years’ experience in software
development, network infrastructure design, system
administration and portal site development. He was also
one of the founders of the portal www.b66.com. Mr.
Lam holds a Certificate of Computer and Communication
Engineering and a Microsoft Certificated Professional +
Internet and is a Microsoft Certificated Systems Engineer.
Mr. Lam joined the Group in July 2000. Each of the
Executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company. Details of such service contracts are
set out in the paragraph headed “Particulars of service
contracts” in Appendix IV to this prospectus.

B o5

B B E

HITES 3

MIEKBREE 3057 0 AEBEFHIME
ERWNITES  BEEEAEEREUE
HH%E - TEEASBEIEE AN
EH o MAKREER - MEEZER—
AMNtEtFEZ2E_ZEZFTZTFHTH
NetTrend Computerf fif £ E + &R
—NMN=ZFE-NLALEFHEETER
BMEARAG ZEMEE o« RREH
M ASERERS  FHMEEREA
PFIILABE T EESDTF&% - 7B
B AP @Y [www.b66.com] &l ¥ A
Z—  MEERHBEMKIAALIZESE
£ K Microsoft  Certificated
Professional + Internet& & - I Ak
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Ms. Chow Wai Man, Grace, aged 46, is an independent
non-executive director of the Group. Ms. Chow graduated
from Yale University in Connecticut, US and University
of Southern California in California, US with a bachelor
degree in administrative science in 1978 and a master
degree in finance in 1981 respectively. Ms. Chow has
approximately twenty years of experience in finance and
banking. She is currently the Head of Private Banking
Asia Pacific and Chief Representative of AIG Private Bank
Limited Hong Kong Representative Office. She was
previously a managing director of the private banking
group of HSBC Republic. Ms. Chow was appointed as
an independent non-executive Director in November
2001.

Ms. Wu Wai Yee, Annis, aged 47, is an independent
non-executive director of the Group. Ms. Wu is the
director of Annis Wu & Associates Limited which engages
in financial advisory services. She has over 13 years of
experience in banking, financial consulting and auditing
with foreign banks, local regulatory body and international
accounting firms, such as Pricewaterhouse, ABN AMBRO
Bank and the SFC. Ms. Wu holds a higher diploma in
accountancy and is an associate member of the Hong
Kong Society of Accountants. She was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director in November 2001.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Chow Kam Wing, aged 44, is the consultant of the
Group. Mr. Chow graduated from Murdoch University in
Perth, Australia with a master degree in business for
the administration. He also completed a master degree
programme in project management from Curtin
University of Technology in Australia. Mr. Chow has about
17 years of experience in property development, project
management, design and construction industry, and
extensive experience in business development in Asia
Pacific region, in particular the PRC and Taiwan. He is
one of the founders and co-owner of PCIM Design and
Contracting Limited and C.P. Designs Limited. Mr. Chow
joined the Group in July 2000.

BWIAEHITES

BE& %t 465 AEEBLIFE
WITEE - AT HRR -t N\EF
R—AWN—FEXEEREE@E7MNIE
N2 R BN FI4E e o M m AN K 22
BRITHME28 L E0 K I EE LS
i - BRRERMMRRITEEBN_TF
K RAWLTRARTEEENRSE
BREANBLARTITIRLRERFRE
IR & A HSBC Republicfh ASRTTH 2
BEEAKE BER_ZET—F+—A
BEERBUEMITES -

WEBEXL 4757 AEBEB LI
BMITESE o AL = A Annis Wu &
Associates Limited 2 E & » i 2 A1
EVBEMREER - BRINE R
T - AMEEHRBEHEER QAN
BEROKBEFTAERFT - AHERTT
MEESZEA T =FRTT BBKZ
ARZELS BRI RHEEHaR
MR WRBEEHMAEEE o &
R-ZZET—F+—RAEZERBIIKE
WMITES -

EESE

Bk E 4458 AEEEAE
B o & % 4 2 2 57OR MM HT Murdoch
University - B T B BB + 2
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REEXBRBOTEFLR  URD
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Ms. Wong Yuen Man, Alice, aged 37, is the director
of human resources and communications of the Group.
Ms. Wong is the sister of Ms. Wong Yuen Yee, who is
She is
responsible for human resources, administration and
external communications. Ms. Wong graduated from

the chairman and an executive Director.

Indiana State University in Indiana, US with a bachelor
degree in public relations. She has approximately 10
years of experience in the field of communications and
human resources. Ms. Wong had spent nine years
employed in American Consulate General in Hong Kong.
She handled the visit of U.S. Secretary of State and
President Clinton in 1997 and 1998 respectively. Prior
to joining the Group, she worked for Adler Planetarium
in Chicago, US. Ms. Wong joined the Group in September
2000.

Mr. Li Kar Fai, Peter, aged 38,
accountant and company secretary of the Group. He is

is the qualified

responsible for the financial control, accounting and
general administration of the Group. Mr. Li graduated
from City University of Hong Kong (formerly City
Polytechnic of Hong Kong) with a bachelor degree in
accountancy. He is an associate member of the Hong
Kong Society of Accountants and a fellow member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. Prior
to joining the Group in February 2002, he worked for
Pricewaterhouse (name changed to
PricewaterhouseCoopers), an international accounting
and audit firm, for eight years and Asia Aluminum
Holdings Limited whose securities are listed on the Stock
Exchange as a financial controller and company secretary

for four years.

R

B E E

EESE @)
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BREREE  DIERATESE
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The Directors are pleased to submit their report together
with the audited financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended
31 March 2003.

GROUP REORGANISATION

Inno-Tech Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in Bermuda on 19 November 2001 as an
exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Acts 1981 of Bermuda as part of the
reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) of the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”). Pursuant to the Reorganisation, the Company
became the holding company of the Group on 5 July
2002.

The Group is regarded as a continuing entity resulting
from the Reorganisation and has been accounted for on
the basis of merger accounting. The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared on the basis
that the Company was the holding company of the Group
for both years presented, rather than from 5 July 2002.
Accordingly, the consolidated results of the Group for
the years ended 31 March 2002 and 2003 include the
results of the Company and its subsidiaries with effect
from 1 April 2001 or since their respective dates of
incorporation, where there is a shorter period. The
consolidated balance sheet at 31 March 2002 is a
combination of the balance sheets of the companies
comprising the Group as at 31 March 2002. The directors
of the Company (the "Directors”) are of the opinion
that the annual financial statements prepared on this
basis present fairly the results of operations and the
state of affairs of the Group as a whole.
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GROUP REORGANISATION (Continued)

Further details of the Reorganisation are set out in the
prospectus dated 30 July 2002 issued by the Company.
The share of the Company were listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market ("GEM") of the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) with effect
from 12 August 2002.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in Note
12 to the financial statement.

There were no significant changes in the nature of the
Group's principal activities during the year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS
The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2003 are set out on page 54 of the annual report.

No interim dividend (2002: HK$Nil) has been paid by
the Company during the year and the Directors do not
recommend the payment of a final dividend in respect
of the year ended 31 March 2003 (2002: HK$Nil).

RESERVES
Details of movements in reserves of the Group are set
out in Note 21 to the financial statements.

FIXED ASSETS

Details of movements in fixed assets of the Group are
set out in Note 10 to the financial statements.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS
No charitable donation (2002: HK$Nil) has been made
by the Group during the year.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in share capital and share options
of the Company are set out in Note 20 to the financial
statements.
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USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE COMPANY’'S
INITIAL PUBLIC OFFERING

Details of the use of proceeds from the Company's
issue of new shares for initial public offering are set out
on pages 21 to 22 of the annual report.

SUBSIDIARIES
Details of the Company’'s subsidiaries at 31 March 2003
are set out in Note 12 to the financial statements.

BANK LOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the
Company and the Group as at 31 March 2003 are set
out in note 18 on the financial statements.

DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company during the year and as at
the date of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Ms. Wong Yuen Yee (Chairman)

Mr. Wong Kwok Sing (Deputy Chairman)
Mr. Wong Yao Wing, Robert

Mr. Lam Shiu San

Independent Non-executive Directors
Ms. Chow Wai Man, Grace
Ms. Wu Wai Yee, Annis

In accordance with Bye-law 86 and 87 of the Company’s
Bye-laws. Mr. Lam Shiu San and Ms. Wu Wai Yee, Annis
will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting
and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

DIRECTORS" AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the directors of the Company
and the senior management of the Group are set out
on pages 33 to 38 of the annual report.
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EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND THE
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the directors’ emoluments and of the five
highest paid individuals in the Group are set out in
note 7 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 March 2003, the interests of the directors and
chief executive of the Company in the shares of the
Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of the Securities (Disclosure of Interests)
Ordinance (“SDI Ordinance"), as recorded in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 29 of
the SDI Ordinance or as required, pursuant to Rules
5.40 to 5.59 of the GEM Listing Rules, to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange were as follows:

A. Interest in the Company
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No. of shares held and nature of interest

FHERGBEREZES

Personal Family Corporate Other
Name of director interests  interests interests  interests
EEpns BAREZ FREk#zm PEExZ HitEx
Ms. Wong Yuen Yee (Note 1) - - 52,320,000 -
mH R (M)
Mr. Wong Kwok Sing (Note 1) - - 52,320,000 -
mEBSRE (W)
Mr. Lam Shiu San (Note 1) - - 11,904,000 -
I S (B aET)
Ms. Wu Wai Yee, Grace (Note 2) - - 3,600,000 -
BB (HiF2)
Ms. Chow Wai Man, Annis (Note 3) 912,000 - - -
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DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES (Continued)

A.

Interest in the Company (Continued)

Notes:

Each of Ms. Wong Yuen Yee, Mr. Wong Kwok
Sing and Mr. Lam Shiu San respectively owns
such Shares through Multiturn Trading Limited,
which is beneficially owned by Ms. Wong Yuen
Yee, Mr. Wong Kwok Sing, Mr. Chow Kam Wing
and Mr. Lam Shiu San as to 31%, 31%, 31%
and 7% respectively.

Winly Group Ltd owns 3,600,000 Shares and is
owned by Ms. Wu Wai Yee, Annis and
independent non-executive director of the
Company, and Ms. To Po Yim in equal shares.
Each of Ms. Wu Wai Yee, Annis and Ms. To Po
Yim is deemed to be interested in 3,600,000
Shares, representing approximately 0.759%

interests in the Company under SDI Ordinance.

Ms. Chow Wai Man, Grace is an independent

non-executive director of the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2003, none of
the directors and chief executive of the Company or

their associates had any personal, family, corporate or

other interests in the shares of the Company or any of

its associated corporations as defined in the SDI

Ordinance or which required, pursuant to Rules 5.40 to
5.59 of the GEM Listing Rues, to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange.
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DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S RIGHTS EERITHARBER M N
TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBT SECURITIES EHREZER
(a) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (a) BHXRLAHAEBRIBRES
Pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, BIEFXAFRE KA EREST
the principal terms of which were set out in the B (FTERRENR_ZZT_F
Prospectus dated 30 July 2002, there were tA=+TRHRAEBEZERE
48,000,000 share options granted to the grantees. B) ARFRAERAEKL
Details of the pre-IPO share options granted to 48,000,000 FER#E - T &
certain Directors are as follows: FTEEZERAMERATER
HzHBWT
Number of
share options
No. of Number of outstanding
WO -TECH Date of shares sharesare  asat31 March  Exercise price
T ? iAD‘ lTNEG [S) Name of director grant granted exercisable 2003 per Share Exercise period
E oAl B & RZFEZF
5 B 2 A ZRz4-§
I 4 4 B e HRAEZ E
ANNUAL 3. FHRH UL E UL ERENE R TERE s
REPORT
02/03 FH Wong Yuen Yee 5 July 2002 4,800,000 2,400,000 4,800,000 HK$0.14 5 July 2002
to 4 July 2012
R “E5-E+BEA 0.1487 —22-_E+ARAE
“E-CFLARA
Wong Kwok Sing 5 July 2002 4,800,000 2,400,000 4,800,000 HK$0.14 5 July 2002
to 4 July 2012
EEE “E3-E+BEA 0.1487 —22-_F+ARAE
“E-CFLARA
Wong Yao Wing, Robert 5 July 2002 4,800,000 2,400,000 4,800,000 HK$0.14 5 July 2002
to 4 July 2012
BhE “E3-E+BEA 0.1487 —22_E+ARHEE
“E-CFLARA
Lam Shiu San 5 July 2002 4,800,000 2,400,000 4,800,000 HK$0.14 5 July 2002
to 4 July 2012
Hk g “E3-E+BEA 0.1487 —22_E+ARHEE

“®-_F+AMA
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DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBT
SECURITIES (Continued)

()

(b)

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (Continued)

A total number of 48,000,000 options were
granted to the grantees (including staffs and
directors) on 5 July 2002 under the Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme. Up to 31 March 2003, no options
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme have
been exercised. Details of the options granted
are set out in the section head “Share Option
Schemes” on Appendix IV of the Prospectus dated
30 July 2002.

Post-IPO Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to a written resolution passed at the
sole shareholder of the Company on 5 July 2002,
the Company conditionally adopted the share
option scheme, the principal terms of which are
set out in the section head “Share Option
Schemes” on Appendix IV of the Prospectus dated
30 July 2002. Up to 31 March 2003, no option
has been granted by the Company pursuant to
such share option scheme.

Save as disclosed under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme and the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme,
as at 31 March 2003, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries was a party to any
arrangements to enable the directors of the
Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debt securities,
including debentures, of the Company or any other
body corporate, and none of the directors and
chief executive of the Company or their spouses
or children under the age of 18 had any right to
subscribe for the securities of the Company, or
had exercised any such right.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS
The term of office of each director, including the

independent non-executive directors, is the period up
to his retirement by rotation in accordance with the

Bye-laws of the Company.

Each of the executive directors has entered into a service
agreement with the Company commencing from 1 April
2002 for an initial fixed term of two and a half years,
which will continue thereafter for such further term (if

any) unless terminated by either party by three months’
prior written notice. As at 31 March 2003, none of
these service contracts had been terminated by either

party.

None of the Directors has entered into any service
agreements with any member of the Group.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE
Details of directors interests in contracts are set out on

page 95 of the annual report under the heading “Related
Party Transactions”.

Save as disclosed above, no contract of significance, to
which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a

party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest subsisted at the end of the year or at

any time during the year.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS FERRE
Other than the interest disclosed herein in respect of BRANEBEEBARNRIES RITH
the directors and chief executive of the Company or BEIRESBZHBEALHOER
their respective associates, the register of substantial O RZTBE=F=A=+—H &
shareholders maintained under the section 16(1) of the BAQNGIRBEREBERREONE 16(1)
SDI Ordinance shows that as at 31 March 2003, the GCFEZFTERREZMAAT - T35
Company had the following substantial shareholders’ FERRBEAEARADETRAR
interests, being 10% or more of the Company’s issued 10%3k LA |- # %5
share capital:
Number of Percentage of
Name shares shareholding
= iz & B ERES
Multiturn Trading Limited (Note 1) (ffi#1) 168,864,000 35.18% INNO-TECH
HOLDINGS
LIMITED
Rexy Investment Limited (Note 2) (Kfit2) 57,600,000 12.00% T
7 R 2 7|
Plotio Limited (Note 2) (Hf#%2) 57,600,000 12.00% 47 N
ANNUAL
HyComm Wireless Limited (Note 2) 57,600,000 12.00% REPORT
EREGBEARAF (MT2) 02/03F§
Notes: B
1. Multiturn Trading Limited is beneficially owned by Ms. 1. Multiturn Trading Limited £ & 1 52
Wong Yuen Yee, Mr. Wong Kwok Sing, Mr. Chow Kam T+ EFJEBLEE  ARKEE
Wing and Mr. Lam Shiu San as to 31%, 31%, 31% and EMkKZEEDRNEBERES
7% respectively. 319% ~ 31% * 31%M& 7% &= ©
2. Rexy Investment Limited is wholly-owned by Plotio 2. Rexy Investment Limited & Plotio
Limited, which is wholly-owned by HyComm Wireless Limitedz 2 &M@ A7 - fPlotio
Limited, a company listed on the main board of the Limited B ZE R EFBEHR DA
Stock Exchange. ZEEMBAR - ERESBE

BERARRBRXAERLET °
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIER

The information in respect of the Group’s turnover and
purchases attributable to the major customers and
suppliers respectively during the year is as follows:

FTERXFPRILES

RAEEAN FERPRHEERE S AIE
GZAEELEERRBEREERN
™

Percentage of the Group’s

EAEBEEZBED®

Turnover Purchases
The largest customer 16.5%
RREFP
Five largest customers in aggregate 54.8%
EAREP (%)
The largest supplier 26%
RAHER
Five largest suppliers in aggregate 85%
AR ER (B

None of the directors of the Company or any of their
associates or any shareholders (which, to the best
knowledge of the directors, own more 5% of the
Company's issued share capital) had any beneficial
interest in the Group’s five largest customers and
suppliers respectively.

MANDATORY PROVIDENT FUND SCHEME

Details of the mandatory provident fund scheme are set
out in Note 19 to the financial statement.
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2003 and the state of the Company’s and the Group’s
affairs as at that date and set out in the financial
statements on pages 54 to 96. A summary of the
published results of the Group for the last three financial
years as if it had been a continuing entity, and of the
assets and liabilities of the Group as at 31 March 2001,
2002 and 2003, as extracted from the Prospectus and
the audited financial statements, is set out on page 17
of the annual report. This summary does not form part
of the audited financial statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities during the period from 12 August 2002
being the listing date of the Company to 31 March
2003.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied with the board practices
and procedures as set out in Rules 5.28 to 5.39 of The
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM
(the "GEM Listing Rules”) since the listing of the
Company'’s shares on the GEM on the listing Date.

SPONSOR'S INTEREST

As updated and notified by the Company’s sponsor,
Hantec Capital Limited (the “Sponsor”), as at 31 March
2003, neither the Sponsor, nor any of its respective
directors, employees or associates (as referred to in
Note 3 to Rules 6.35 of the GEM Listing Rules) had any
interests in any class of securities of the Company or
any member of the Group, or any right to subscribe for
or to nominate persons to subscribe for the securities
of the Company or any member of the Group.
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COMPETING INTERESTS

None of the directors or the management shareholders
or any of their respective associates (as defined in the
GEM Listing Rules) of the Company had an interest in a
business which causes or may cause any significant
competition with the business of the Group.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee on 5 July
2002 with written terms of reference in compliance with
rules 5.23, 5.24 and 5.25 of the GEM Listing Rules. The
audit committee currently comprises two members, Ms.
Wu Wai Yee, Annis and Ms. Chow Wai Man, Grace, who
are the independent non-executive Directors of the
Company.

During the year, the audit committee held three meetings
to review and comment on the Company's quarterly
and interim reports.

The Group's audited annual results for the year ended
31 March 2003 have been reviewed by the audit
committee, who was of the opinion that the preparation
of such results complied with the applicable accounting
standards and requirements and that adequate
disclosures have been made.
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AUDITORS

A resolution to re-appoint the retiring auditors, Messrs
KPMG, is to be proposed at the forthcoming annual
general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
Inno-Tech Holdings Limited
Wong Yuen Yee

Chairman

Hong Kong, 23 June 2003
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Auditors’ report to the shareholders of
Inno-Tech Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements on pages 54
to 96 which have been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong.

Respective responsibilities of directors and
auditors

The Company’s directors are responsible for the
preparation of financial statements which give a true
and fair view. In preparing financial statements which
give a true and fair view it is fundamental that
appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied
consistently, that judgments and estimates are made
which are prudent and reasonable and that the reasons
for any significant departure from applicable accounting
standards are stated.

It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion,
based on our audit, on those financial statements and
to report our opinion to you.

Basis of opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Statements
of Auditing Standards issued by the Hong Kong Society
of Accountants. An audit includes examination, on a
test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. It also includes
an assessment of the significant estimates and
judgements made by the directors in the preparation of
the financial statements, and of whether the accounting
policies are appropriate to the Company’'s and the
Group's circumstances consistently applied and
adequately disclosed.
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REPORT OF THE AUDITORS
% B OB ¥} F

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all
the information and explanations which we considered
necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence
to give reasonable assurance as to whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement. In
forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall
adequacy of the presentation of information in the
financial statements. We believe that our audit provides
a reasonable basis for our opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of
the Group as at 31 March 2003 and of the Group's
profit and cash flows for the year then ended and have
been properly prepared in accordance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 23 June 2003
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

= A 42 3L
= a5 B @ B
For the year ended 31 March 2003
HE-_TT=F=RA=1T—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LB 7T 3)
2003 2002
—ET=F | _TZT_F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
P & THER TAT
Turnover BEE 3 25,655 19,461
Cost of services PR 75 B AR (4,278) (2,161)
Gross profit EF 21,377 17300
Other revenue H i e A 4 115 1
Research and development expenses  #ff 3¢ K A 2 5 3% (492) (240)
Marketing and promotion expenses  MHBHEEREER X (2,957) (1,013)
Administrative expenses THA X (8,205) (3,059)
Profit from operations BEHERN 9,838 12,989
Finance costs MBER 5(a) (431) (33)
Profit from ordinary activities BRAAERE
before taxation #7555 F 5 9,407 12,956
Taxation B 6(a) (1,844) (2,074)
Profit attributable to shareholders % & & {% it 7 7,563 10,882
Earnings per share BREM
- Basic —EXK 9 1.69 centsfli |2.83 centsll
— Diluted —&E 9 1.64 centsfl N/AT i@ A

The notes on pages 60 to 96 form part of these financial

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

e~ A =
m A = 8 & %
At 31 March 2003
R-_EE=F=HA=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(& T 2R )
2003 2002
—5%=% e 3
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 5 T#T THEL
Non-current assets FRBEE
Fixed assets ETBE 10 1,967 304
Intangible assets EREE 1 14,155 1,800
16,122 2,104
Current assets TEEE
Inventories e 13 1,700 =
Accounts receivable B Ui Bk 3 14 14,048 7810
Prepayments, deposits and BENHE - Ee
other receivables REMEREE 6,908 3,320
Amounts due from customers Y =EPE] 2,060 =
Amount due from a related party BN HEEATHE 200 -
Pledged deposits BHEAGTH 16 10,000 3,500
Cash and cash equivalents BeRHEEEY 17 1,476 1,855
36,392 16,485
Current liabilities I B=Ni-
Bank loans and overdrafts BAERREX 18 13,753 3,502
Accrued expenses and other payables EREARHMERNFKE 3,920 1,273
Amounts due to directors ERNEZHE 303 =
Amount due to a related party ENEEATRE 174 -
Taxation KA 6(b) 937 937
19,087 5712
Net current assets TEHEEFE 17,305 10,773
Non-current liability ¥RBER
Deferred tax liability EEHESR 6(c) 2,163 319
NET ASSETS BEEFH 31,264 12,558
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BARGE
Share capital R 20 4,800 109
Reserves it 21 26,464 12,449
31,264 12,558

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of

directors on 23 June 2003.

The notes on pages 60 to 96 form part of these financial

statements.

R-ZEE=ZFNA-_T=ZHEEEE
A R IR -

60T HI6H Z M AR RE
Z = -

I.r-

INNO-TECH
HOLDINGS
LIMITED
E oAl 7 R
A R 2 7

55 I

ANNUAL
REPORT

02/03 %33R



| BALANCE SHEET
g8 E & &

i o
At 31 March 2003
R-_EE=F=HA=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(A& T 2R )
2003 2002
—5%=% b a3
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
i & T#T THEL
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries MERRRE 12 5,925 =
5,925 -
Current assets TEEE
Prepayments and other receivables TR RIE e E At B M AROE 1 -
Amounts due from subsidiaries L ENGTE ¢ 17,809 =
Amounts due from directors EWEZHE - 100
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBREeERN 17 10 -
INNO-TECH
HOLDINGS 17.820 100
LI M ITED !
E & % B’
= EE A % Current liabilities I B=Ni-
5 6 Accrued expenses and other payables BREAREMENFTE 120 -
Amounts due to subsidiaries FE B B 2 Rl F 08 3,209 =
ANNUAL Amounts due to directors ENEZHE 250 =
REPORT
02/03F % 3,579 _
Net current assets TEHEEFE 14,241 100
NET ASSETS EEFE 20,166 100
CAPITAL AND RESERVES BARGE
Share capital R 20 4,800 100
Reserves i 21 15,366 =
20,166 100

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of

directors on 23 June 2003.

The notes on pages 60 to 96 form part of these financial

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
kR &

= A\
= A/

# B

wOK

For the year ended 31 March 2003
HE_ZT=F=RAR=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LE 7T 37)
2003 2002
—FF=F | —_TTF
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Pt &% T#ER TET
Shareholders’ equity at 1 April REA—BZBRRER 12,558 66
Net profit for the year Hy % M 2R 7,563 10,882
Dividend approved during the year ~ AFE FWaI#t A2
prior to listing [h@5) 8 (4,000) -
Contributed surplus arising from BHEEEZHA
Reorganisation B (191) -
Reserve capitalised as a result BRDRMEEZ
of share for share exchange BX(L#EAE 21 = 1,588
Movements in share capital: PRAEE
New shares issued BIIEH KRG 20 4,800 22
Elimination in Reorganisation 55 4H BRF 1 55 20 (109) -
Net shares premium received B G5 % B E 21 10,643 =
Net increase in shareholders’ equity B HiE TR A
arising from capital transactions RHBELEZ
with shareholders % R 25 12 0% 58 15,334 22
Shareholders’ equity at 31 March R=A=+—H2
PSR 4 21 31,264 12,558

The notes on pages 60 to 96 form part of these financial

statements.
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For the year ended 31 March 2003
BE_ZTZ=F=ZA=+—HIHFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LT 37)

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
& B 2 "

g =R

2003 2002
“FF=F | —TT-F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
B & FTER THET
Operating activities Bex®H
Profit from ordinary activities BR 250 B 1E % 7508 A
before taxation 9,407 12,956
Adjustments for: SATHEBELAE
Depreciation and amortisation TE K #H 1,957 272
Interest income FE WA (63) (M
Finance costs NBER 431 33
Operating profit before changes R EEEEEPE
in working capital ZBeiEA 11,732 13,260
Increase in inventories FEEM (1,700 -
Increase in accounts receivable F& FA AR S35 0 (6,238) (7,810)
Increase in prepayments, deposits and BT B - & R
other receivables H fth, & U 3R I8 5 AN (3,588) (2,112)
Increase in amounts due from customers J& Y& 5 238 1 A1 (2,060) -
Increase in amounts due to directors AN b 303 -
Increase in amount due from Y REAL
related parties BN (26) -
Increase/(decrease) in accrued BIRER R EMER
expenses and other payables FEE M ORd) 147 (121)
Cash (used in)/provided by mg (R
operations RUHEZHE (1,430) 3,217
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid EHEBNEMR = -
Net cash (used in)/provided by Bex®n (ER)/
operating activities RUEZBEEFR (1,430) 3,217
Investing activities REXH
Interest received =L &S 63 1
Increase in pledged deposits BEAFRIE M (6,500) (3,500)
Payment for purchase of fixed assets BEETEAEZLNE (1,914) (80)
Payment for purchase of BERVEEZNE
intangible assets (14,061) (3,136)
Net cash used in investing activities REFHERZREFE (22,412) (6,715)




CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

= N =
N /El\ Eﬁ, ﬁ /ﬁ == '%%
For the year ended 31 March 2003
HE_TZ=F=A=+—HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LB 7T 3)
2003 2002
“FF=F | —TT-F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt = TERT TET
Financing activities MEERD
Issuance of shares BTG - 1,610
Net proceeds from issuance of BIIERG
new shares ZHBFIASE 15,143 =
Interest paid B E (431) (33)
Proceeds from new bank loans MBTERZHERA 11,900 =
Repayment of bank loan BERITER (145) -
Dividend paid to equity owners X R L T AT A
prior to listing REEEAZKRE (1,500) -
Net cash generated from financing FMEE4£ZHEFE 24,967 1,577
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and R&RHFEEEBEWE M/
cash equivalents (HD) 38 1,125 (1,921)
Cash and cash equivalents REA—-BZHE
at 1 April REAEEEY (1,647) 274
Cash and cash equivalents R=ZA=+—-HzZ8&
at 31 March RRESEY 17 (522) (1,647)
Non-cash transactions ¥REXRS

In preparation for the listing of the Company's shares, the
Company issued 30,000,000 shares at HK$0.01 at par as part of
the Reorganisation and credited as fully paid, as consideration
for the acquisition by the Company of the entire issued share

capital of Cyberliving Holdings Limited.

The notes on pages 60 to 96 form part of these financial

statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.

%

REORGANISATION

Inno-Tech Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in Bermuda on 19 November 2001
as an exempted company with limited liability
under the Companies Acts 1981 of Bermuda as
part of the reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”)
of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”). Pursuant to the
Reorganisation, the Company became the holding
company of the Group on 5 July 2002.

The Group is regarded as a continuing entity
resulting from the Reorganisation and has been
accounted for on the basis of merger accounting.
The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the basis that the Company was the
holding company of the Group for both years
presented, rather than from 5 July 2002.
Accordingly, the consolidated results of the Group
for the years ended 31 March 2002 and 2003
include the results of the Company and its
subsidiaries with effect from 1 April 2001 or since
their respective dates of incorporation, where there
is a shorter period. The consolidated balance sheet
at 31 March 2002 is a combination of the balance
sheets of the companies comprising the Group
as at 31 March 2002. Directors are of the opinion
that the annual financial statements prepared on
this basis present fairly the results of operations
and the state of affairs of the Group as a whole.

Further details of the Reorganisation are set out
in the prospectus dated 30 July 2002 issued by
the Company and the details of the subsidiaries
acquired pursuant to the Reorganisation are set
out in note 12 on the financial statements. The
share of the Company were listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market ("GEM") of the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) with
effect from 12 August 2002.
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2.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B % ® K M

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

(b)

(<)

(d)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable
Statements of Standard Accounting Practice
and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Society of Accountants, accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

These financial statements also comply with
the disclosure requirements of the Listing
Rules of the GEM of the Stock Exchange. A
summary of the significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group is set out
below.

Basis of preparation

The measurement basis used in the
preparation of the financial statement is
historical cost.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements
include the financial statements of the
Company and all of its subsidiaries made
up to 31 March of each year prepared on
the basis of presentation as described in
Note 1.

Subsidiaries and controlled enterprises
A subsidiary, in accordance with the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, is a company
in which the Group, directly or indirectly,
holds more than half of the issued share
capital, or controls more than half the voting
power, or controls the composition of the
board of directors. Subsidiaries are
considered to be controlled if the Company
has the power, directly or indirectly, or
govern the financial and operating policies,

so as to obtain benefits from their activities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

%

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries and controlled enterprises
(Continued)

An investment in a controlled subsidiary is
consolidated into the consolidated financial
statements, unless it is acquired and held
exclusively with a view to subsequent
disposal in the near future or operates
under severe long-term restrictions which
significantly impair its ability to transfer
funds to the Group, in which case it is
stated in the consolidated balance sheet at
fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in the consolidated income
statement as they arise.

Intra-group balances and transactions, and
any unrealised profits arising from inter-
group transactions, are eliminated in full in
preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses resulting from
intra-group transactions are eliminated in
the same way as unrealised gains, but only
to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

In the Company’'s balance sheet, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost
less any impairment losses (see Note 2
(g)), unless it is acquired and held
exclusively with a view to subsequent
disposal in the near future or operates
under severe long-term restrictions which
significantly impair its ability to transfer
funds to the company, in which case, it is
stated at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in the income statement as they

arise.

wOR

s

2
At

FESFBR (@)

(d)

CE PNCR L X
()

REEHNBEAR 2R
EHSIAGRA BB RE
AP E AT 1Y
SR RA 5 E R R
P T AR 5
B RARBERBR
# TRE  UBEEMR
BEBASEALEY
B EEERT R
HEARZBEARA
TEEIAGARESR
k- ATEEZEH
BEDBS 15 4 A 18 2 B
B -

SERNFEHRERS
ARAEEETEER
AR H M EE 2 EMK
BERam A R RS
EMBHRERE2HY
H o KRBARBR S A
BAEREBERZHIHEA
AERFEHWSEMAR -
HEE A | R BEZ
BRBE -

EAXARBIcEERER
ToRMBARZIKRE
BRAIRRERBRE (R
Y fE2(g)) &FIER + A
- HMZEREDNER
EHENEHALEMNE
AREE  HARHE
BRARREITREZE - A
BREHBREBEBEESEN
RAEIZEES - HEBBER
T REBRARIZERE
BERNFEEIE 2
FEEZEHANKE
BaE R PR -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B % ® K M

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(e) Fixed assets

)

(i)

Valuation

Fixed assets are stated in the balance
sheets at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses
(see Note 2(g)).

Subsequent expenditure relating to a
fixed asset that has already been
recognised is added to the carrying
amount of the asset when it is
probable that future economic
benefits, in excess of the originally
assessed standard of performance of
the existing asset, will flow to the
Group. All subsequent
expenditure is recognised as an

other

expense in the period in which it is
incurred.

Depreciation
Leasehold improvements are
depreciated on a straight-line basis

over the lease term.

Depreciation is calculated to write off
the cost of other fixed assets over
their estimated useful lives on a
straight-line basis as follows:

Furniture and fixtures

Equipment Bgi]
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B % H X

i oA
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)
(e) Fixed assets (Continued)
(iii)  Disposals
Gains or losses arising from the
retirement or disposal of a fixed asset
are determined as the difference
between the estimated net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of
the asset and are recognised in the
income statement on the date of
retirement or disposal.
INNO-TECH (f) Intangible assets
[l ? iAD‘ lTNEG ; () Valuation
B oA = K Intangible assets that are acquired by

= b= A the Group are stated in the balance

_64 sheets at cost less accumulated

ANNUAL amortisation and impairment losses
REPORT (see Note 2(g)).
02/03 FRH

Subsequent expenditure on an
intangible asset after its purchase or
its completion is recognised as an
expense when it is incurred unless it
is probable that this expenditure will
enable the asset to generate future
economic benefits in excess of its
originally assessed standard of
performance and this expenditure can
be measured and attributed to the
asset reliably. If these conditions are
met, the subsequent expenditure is
added to the cost of the intangible
asset.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt B #® & K &

L e
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2. FTEFEFHR &)
(Continued)
(f) Intangible assets (Continued) (fy &‘EEEE (@)
(i) Amortisation (i) #H
Amortisation of intangible assets is BRVEEZCHH
charged to the income statement on TR EEZEE
a straight-line basis over the assets’ AERFHRHNUE
estimated useful lives as follows: MEEFAEBESR
BRI :
Computer software E - s 5 years 54F
(g) Impairment of assets (9) EBEERE
Internal and external sources of information EENEEAERSH
are reviewed at each balance sheet date to B R ANRAF B - DAHE INNO-TECH

identify indications that the following assets
may be impaired or an impairment loss

ENIEBEAST HER
B KUAEE®ERZR

HOLDINGS
LIMITED
E oAl 7 R

previously recognised no longer exists or BEEEEATEFESK B 2 A
may have decreased: Al e 2 R A 65 I

ANNUAL

— investments in subsidiaries; - KRB AR Z2& REPORT

= 02/03 &%

— fixed assets; and

— intangible assets.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An
impairment loss is recognised whenever the
carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

%

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(g) Impairment of assets (Continued)

)
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(i)

Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset
is the greater of its net selling price
and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects
assessments of time value of money

current market
and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate
cash inflows largely independent of
those from other assets, the
recoverable amount is determined for
the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently
(i.e. a cash-generating unit).

Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if
there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount. A reversal of
impairment losses is limited to the
asset’s carrying amount that would
have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised in
prior years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to the income
statement in the year in which the
reversals are recognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

Inventories
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost
and net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the first-in, first-out
method and comprises all costs of purchase,
costs of conversion and other costs incurred
in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less
the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying
amount of those inventories is recognised
as an expense in the period in which the
related revenue is recognised. The amount
of any write-down of inventories to net
realisable value and all losses of inventories
are recognised as an expense in the period
the write-down or loss occurs. The amount
of any reversal of any write-down of
inventories, arising from an increase in net
realisable value, is recognised as a reduction
in the amount of inventories recognised as
an expense in the period in which the
reversal occurs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

%

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()

()

Service contracts
The accounting policy for contract revenue
is set out in Note 2(n).

Service contracts in progress at the balance
sheet date are recorded in the balance
sheet at the net amount of costs incurred
plus recognized profits less recognized
losses and progress billings, and are
presented in the balance sheet as the
“amounts due from customers” if a debit
balance, and “amounts due to customers”
if a credit balance. Progress billings not yet
paid by the customers are included in the
balance sheet under accounts receivable.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
at bank and on hand, demand deposits with
banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts
of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having
been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are
repayable on demand and form an integral
part of the Group’s cash management are
also included as a component of cash and
cash equivalents for the purpose of the
consolidated cash flow statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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B % ® K M

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(k)

M

Retirement benefits

(1) Salaries, annual bonus, paid annual
leave, leave passage and the cost to
the Group of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered by
employees of the Group.

(i) Contributions to Mandatory Provident
Fund as required under the Hong
Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance are recognised
as an expense in the consolidated
income statement as incurred.

(iii)  When the Group grants to employees
options to acquire shares in the
Company at nominal consideration,
no employee benefit cost or
obligation is recognised at the date
of grant. When such options are
exercised, equity is
increased by the amount of the
proceeds received.

shareholders’

Provisions and contingent liabilities
Provisions are recognised for liabilities of
uncertain timing or amount when the
Company or Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of
a past event, it is probable that an outflow
of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made. Where the time value of
money is material, provisions are stated at
the present value of the expenditures
expected to settle the obligation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

%

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

U]

(m)

Provisions and contingent liabilities
(Continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent
liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events
are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote.

Deferred taxation

Deferred taxation is calculated under the
liability method in respect of the taxation
effect arising from all material timing
differences between the accounting and tax
treatment of income and expenditure, which
are expected with reasonable probability to
crystallise in the foreseeable future.

Future deferred tax benefits are not
recognised unless their realisation is assured
beyond reasonable doubt.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B % ® K M

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

(n)

Revenue recognition
Provided it is probable that the economic

benefits will flow to the Group and the

revenue and costs, if applicable, can be

measured reliably, revenue is recognised in

the income statement as follows:

(i)

Residential intranet and software
application design services

Revenue arising from the provision
of residential intranet and software
application design services is
recognised when the underlying
services are rendered, which is
estimated by apportionment over the
expected duration of each
engagement, and the outcome of the
contract can be estimated with

reasonable certainty.

Interest income

Interest income from bank deposits
is accrued on a time-apportioned
basis by reference to the principal
outstanding and the rate applicable.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

%

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(o)

(p)

(q)

Research and development costs

Research and development costs comprise
all costs that are directly attributable to
research and development activities or that
can be allocated on a reasonable basis to
such activities. Research costs are
recognised as an expense in the period in
which they are incurred. Development costs
are recognised as an expense in the period
in which they are incurred unless their
recovery from closely related revenue or
cost savings is probable. Such development
costs are deferred and written off over the
life of the relevant projects from the date
of commencement of commercial
operations subject to a maximum of five

years.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in the income
statement in the period in which they are
incurred, except to the extent that they are
capitalised as being directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production
of an asset which necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for
its intended use or sale.

Translation of foreign currencies
Foreign currency transactions during the
year are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the exchange rates ruling at the balance
sheet date.

Exchange gains and losses are dealt with in
the income statement.

wOR

s

2
At

FESFBR (@)

(0)

MARRRERE

B 9T Mo B B B N B FE PR
EEEZEERRVHR &F
BRI AKKERE
AR AR TZEFRDY
LA o B R AT R
HIR 2 BIE AR A X
e MEBERATIRAER
ZHEAERR/ L
BRIERT A ZE ) B B 2
AR B A U @ B
A - BIERIGR © % F
MEXANAMBEARB
BELEMHKAEBHE
ZHE (ZZHEF)A
iR FE Ko M3 e

fa & M &

EERARELE ZHE
RIBEEBER RS
HE fid {8 & A AN B B
B RBREXLEEEBEER
EAEBMmMTUAEREM
EERTEZHERKEAA
ARARERSZ LD
E AT ERNBRRE
RSB °

i E
FAZINBRZERS
EHCEXRB®RELB
o INEREBENZE
KEEMBREZZEER
ZERBELER -

EREDZYFARS
EE o
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(q)

()

(s)

Translation of foreign currencies
(Continued)

The results of subsidiaries outside Hong
Kong are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the average exchange rates for the year,
balance sheet items are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the rates of exchange
ruling at the balance sheet date. The
resulting exchange differences are dealt with
as a movement in reserves.

Operating leases

Where the Group has the use of assets
under operating leases, payments made
under the leases are charged to the income
statement in equal instalments over the
periods covered by the lease term.

Related parties

For the purposes of this report, parties are
considered to be related to the Group if
the Group has the ability, directly or
indirectly, to control the party or exercise
significant influence over the party in
making financial and operating decisions,
or vice versa, or where the Group and the
party are subject to common control or
common significant influence. Related
parties may be individuals or other entities.

FEESTHBR @)

(q)

(r)

(s)

ShsmE ()

REBAIMEEREE R
BeWBARAZEEN
REAFTHEXRBRER
o BEERAMEBXRER
AYREER ZEXK
BEREE MELEZE
REBRBINEREBED
BRI o

BEMAL
WAEBHEALERLD
BTEEZERAE 1R
BHRAZN 2 REBERA
AR AR E M A
Ba=iE o

FRER

HABFEMS - MAKE

B 5t %) B £ o A T
E—A%BE—F2H
BREERKEEEKX
BN KB —FHEE
WEESEEESASE
B AEE B R
KERARBEERZE
27 HAEEHES—
7R B HE S H
REAFZE  BEATL
S AAEE 2 @iE
7o B@ER A RMER A
THEMEE -

INNO-TECH
HOLDINGS
LIMITED
E A8 7 K
A R 2 7

73 I

ANNUAL
REPORT

02/03 %33R



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt B #® & K &

HOLDINGS
LI MITED
E oAl 7 R
A R 2 7

I 7 4

ANNUAL
REPORT

02/03F3R

directors consider the analyses by business and
geographical segments are not required.

i, ol

TURNOVER EXE#
The Company acts as an investment holding RRARAR/—RZREERRAT]
company and the Group is principally engaged in mMASEEAEEZERERFER
the design of residential intranet and the provision NERENMIEHETYEEER
of e-property management software application AEGEAREERE %
consulting and related services. Turnover o EXERMIBEHES A
represents the amounts received and receivable A8 K e PR R SR Gt IR 75 AT M ER
for the provision of residential intranet and K e W ER 2 FRIE o
software application design services.
The Group’s turnover and operating profit are REBZRELERBREER
entirely derived from the design of residential MEBRBEREEMTBEEZEFRR
intranet and software application design and HEPABM R - AREMS
development services rendered in Hong Kong to JER R MRAERL - AL

INNO-TECH customers based in the PRC. Accordingly, the EERE BEREBRHME

DBEL DN -

OTHER REVENUE H g A
2003 2002
—EF=fF —TT-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#ExT FHET
Interest income B U A 63 1
Sundry income FIE WA 52 -
115 1




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS' ,
MO% ®m & MoE

PROFIT FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES 5. BBWEEXHiEF

BEFORE TAXATION

Profit from ordinary activities before taxation is BRTAIEE XK ENE MR T

arrived at after charging: 5| & 1A -
2003 2002
—EFE=H —EE_F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ERT FHET
(a) Finance costs: MBER
Interest on bank advances AR AF ANBH
wholly repayable within BEZRITER
five years A 431 33
INNO-TECH
(b)  Staff costs: BIAA : HOLDINGS
Contributions to defined &R &t & SR
E Al E K
contribution plan H 108 80 # B 2 &
Salaries, Wage§ and ¥ %i?@ﬂ& 75
other benefits H b 18 7 7,370 3,864
ANNUAL
7,478 3,944 [
02/03 FRH
Average number of FiEE AH
employees 13 9
(c)  Other items: HiIER -
Auditors’ remuneration % B RD B 500 100
Amortisation of B EES®E
intangible assets 1,706 200
Depreciation e 251 72
Operating lease charges K& EMX :
in respect of:
— office equipment g VN = 24
— office premises —-WREME 306 279




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt B #® & K &

i o
6. TAXATION 6. WHIE
(a) Taxation in the consolidated income (a) #HEHETERZIBIERE:
statement represents:
2003 2002
“EEZH —ETT_F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ExT FAT
Provision for Hong Kong ~ &ABFIEH
Profits Tax B - 937
Deferred taxation 1R SE 7 18
(Note 6(c)) (P sE6(C)) 1,844 1,137
1,844 2,074
INNO-TECH
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No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has
been made in the financial statements for

the year ended 31 March 2003 as the
Company sustained losses for taxation
purpose.

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax for
the year ended 31 March 2002 is calculated
at 16% of the estimated assessable profits
arising in Hong Kong for the year.

HMRARRRBBEBAS
BEEE At ER
HE-_ZTZT=F=ZR=
+T—BHLEFEZTBR
RABEEFE B
1# o

HE-_ZTZT-_F=ZR=
T-—BIEFEREZHE
SHORBFANRE R
B2 AT AR s A
R16%T K& #E o

Taxation in the consolidated balance (b) HZEEEBBRZIHE
sheets represents: i
2003 2002
—EEE=H —TE_F
HK$000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Provision for Hong Kong &5 FI15 i & &
Profits Tax = 937
Balance of profits tax AT F ENAE T
provision in respect of Bim &8
prior years 937 =
937 937




6.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
HOR M

%

TAXATION (Continued) 6. HIE (&)
(c) Deferred taxation (c) EEHE
()  Movements in deferred taxation () EEHEEZEE
comprise: 7 -
2003 2002
—EFE=H —EE_F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
At 1 April R A — A (319) 818
Transfer from the EEaERER
income statement (FHzE6(a))
(Note 6(a)) (1,844) (1,137)
At 31 March R=A=+—8H (2,163) (319)
(i) Major components of deferred tax (i) AEEHZEZPE

(liabilities)/assets of the Group are (BE) BEFTE
set out below: MR E T -
2003 2002
“EEZH —ET_F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Tax losses 1t 18 /& 18 496 -
Depreciation allowances HHEEBIFE
in excess of related ZIERTEE
depreciation (2,659) (319)
(2,163) (319)
There was no material unprovided REBEZAER I
deferred taxation at each balance BmAEMERNRER

sheet date.

ZIEFER IR o
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DIRECTORS" AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT'S REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B % | K M &

EEREESEZHME

BIEBERBEHE 161 1KHK

section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies BZEEMa2OT :
Ordinance is as follows:
2003 2002
— et —ETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#ExT FE T
Fees Fiakc 250 =
Basic salaries, allowances EAR#F S - =8
and other benefits N E i 1@ ) 4,060 2,400
Discretionary bonuses B 15 TE 4L 800 -
Retirement benefits iR K18 7 50 39
5,160 2,439
Number of directors BEEAH 7 6

Emoluments of each of the seven directors
amounted to approximately HK$1,252,000,
HK$1,252,000, HK$1,172,000, HK$992,000,
HK$242,000, HK$125,000 and HK$125,000 for
the year ended 31 March 2003 and approximately
HK$612,000, HK$612,000, HK$612,000,
HK$603,000, HK$Nil and HK$Nil for the year
ended 31 March 2002.

Included in the directors’ remuneration were fees
of HK$125,000 paid or payable to each of the
two independent non-executive directors during
the years ended 31 March 2003 and
HK$Nil for the year ended 31 March 2002.

HEz-_ZTT=F=ZA=+—H
LEFE tREFZHME 55
# & 1,252,000% 7T
1,252,000 7C * 1,172,000/
JT ~ 992,000/ JT + 242,000
B Jt + 125,000 Tt &
125,000 7L MBEZZTZT
ZFEF=ZA=1+T—HLFEE &
L2728 & A5 R4 /612,000
B T - 612,000 T
612,000 7L * 603,000/%
T ZEATREETT -

EEMEREREE_SS =
FZAZT—BHLEEEDAE
NN FMALB L IERITE
£2#%12500087T AR
REBE_ET_F=A=1+—
HIEFEZZEHBT -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt B #® & K &

DIRECTORS' AND SENIOR 7. EEREESEZME
MANAGEMENT'S REMUNERATION (#%)
(Continued)
The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of TE&ZRFALT(BRES)Z
the five highest paid individuals (including Ble@maT -
directors) is as follows:
2003 2002
—EFE=H —EE_F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FT#ER FHET
Basic salaries, allowances EAFHFS  EHM
and other benefits H 12 A 4,060 3,000
Discretionary bonuses 15 TE AL 800 - INNO-TECH
Retirement benefits R RTE A 50 51 [' (!3 ,\LA D‘ 'TNEG ;
4,910 3,051 g fﬁ‘j Z% Hj
During the year, no emoluments were paid by AEEAN AEEHSERAA 79 IS
the Group to the five highest paid individuals as EeHALIMNEMBME - F ANNUAL
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group RBEMAREE SN MAR : E/P Of;;-&r
02/03

or as compensation for loss of office. No directors
have waived or agreed to waive any emoluments
during the year.

SRR RSHBEBEE -
BEENAFEANEXRE
MEWIAERME -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Bt B #® & K &

HOLDINGS
LI MITED
E oAl 7 R
A R 2 7

ANNUAL
REPORT

02/03F3R

(b)

subsidiary of the Group to the equity
shareholders prior to listing. The final
dividend proposed after the balance sheet
date has not been recognised as a liability
at the balance sheet date.

Dividend attributable to the previous
financial year, approved during the year
prior to listing:

i oA
8. DIVIDEND 8. R
(a) Dividend attributable to the year: (a) AEEZHRE:
2003 2002
—FFE=H —ETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Final dividend proposed HEBRBIKZ
after the balance sheet AR EER
date of HK$Nil THETT
(2002: HK$286) (ZEZT =
per share 286/ 7T) - 4,000
i i The final dividend was proposed by a AEBMWMBEARGR LT

Al 32 5% [7) Ak SRR 1+ R 9
BB - R&EERREBIK
ZRAKRE L RERR
MERZBIE -

(b) LEMHEEEERAS
ELrmEsEZRE

2003 2002
—EBEE=H —EE_F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Final dividend in respect B8 BKFE B
of the previous financial ~ RAFE L2
year, approved during AR EER
the year of HK$286 28678 TT
(2002: HK$Nil) (ZZET =F
per share THTT) 4,000 -




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B % ¥} x K J
b
9. EARNINGS PER SHARE 9. BERER
(a) Basic earnings per share (a) BREXAERF
The calculation of basic earnings per share BHE_ZZT=F=A=
for the year ended 31 March 2003 is based T-BLEFREZERE
on the profit attributable to shareholders of B A TR IR R e (R
HK$7,563,000 and on the weighted average #17,563,0008 T R F R
of 448,000,000 ordinary shares in issue B 17T @K 2 i F
during the year. The calculation of basic ¥ ik 81448,000,000%
earnings per share for the year ended 31 HECBE_ZTTF
March 2002 was based on the profit ZA=+—HLEFEZ
attributable to shareholders of BREXRENTRBKR
HK$10,882,000 and on the 384,000,000 J& 15 % #110,882,000%
shares of the Company outstanding after TTRARBRAE B E
the Group's Reorganisation and TEANERCEITR
Capitalisation Issue. [ S A | S
384,000,000 5t & - e
HOLDINGS
LIM1TED
(b) Diluted earnings per share (b) EBRE@EZRF E 8 7 K
The calculation of diluted earnings per share BREERMNDEER A R 2 "
is based on the profit attributable to BB R OE 5 & A 81
ordinary shareholders of HK$7,563,000 and 7,563,000/ 7T M #% 58
the weighted average number of ordinary EEGE#H ST BRZ 2 !: s g 2 #
shares of 461,753,582 shares after FEBE 2 EBIRZ INE .
S gL 02/03F K
adjusting for the effects of all dilutive SEH A #461,753,582
potential ordinary shares. There were no Bet&E - BE_ZTT
potential dilutive ordinary shares in issue F=ZA=+—HLF
during the year ended 31 March 2002. B WEAEMRE ETE
E#EEBRK -
(c) Reconciliation (c) HER
2003
“EEZH
Number of shares
BR#HEE
Weighted average number of FAEERERR MR
ordinary shares used in calculating ERzEBRZ
basic earnings per share I 15 Bk B 448,000,000
Deemed issue of ordinary shares BIERZERE
for no consideration HITE AR 13,753,582
Weighted average number of FTE SRS R R
ordinary shares used in calculating ERzEBRZ
diluted earnings per share I 15 Bk 2K 461,753,582
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

fy &

10. FIXED ASSETS 10. BIE&E
The Group pi g 3
Furniture
Leasehold and
improvements fixtures Equipment Total
HE R R
MEKE RE R st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FHE T FHE T FE T
Cost: BA
At 1 April 2002 RZZET_F
MA—H - 138 278 416
Additions NE 353 136 1,425 1,914
At 31 March 2003 RZZEE=F
—A=+—H 353 274 1,703 2,330
Accumulated REIFE -
depreciation:
At 1 April 2002 RZZET_F
MA—H - 44 68 112
Charge for the year ~ FRXH 15 43 193 251
At 31 March 2003 RZZEE=F
—A=+—H” 15 87 261 363
Net book value: BREFE
At 31 March 2003 R-ZEZ=F
=A=+—H 338 187 1,442 1,967
At 31 March 2002 RZBEZE_F
=A=+—H - 94 210 304




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS' ,
MO% ®m & MoE

11. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 1. BREEE
The Group AEHE

Computer software

B G
HK$'000
T 7T
Cost: B
At 1 April 2002 RZZTEZT_FMA—AH 2,000
Additions NE 14,061
At 31 March 2003 R-ZZEE=F=HA=+—H 16,061
Accumulated amortisation: ZE &t :
At T April 2002 R-FTE-FmA—R 200 0 L
Charge for the year FAXH 1,706 LIM1TED
E & % B’
At 31 March 2003 R-ZEE=F=A=+—H 1,006 NG
‘ 83 I
Net book value: F?Eﬁ@ﬁ AN U AL
At 31 March 2003 R-_EE=F=H=+—H 14,155 REPORT
02/03F3R
At 31 March 2002 R-ZZEE_F=A=+—H 1,800
The amortisation of intangible assets for the year REEZEBRVEEBHEAALR
is included in “cost of services” in the consolidated EEZEZIRBEEIA -
income statement.
12. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 12. BARZKE
The Company
N F
2003 2002
—EF=fF —TT-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&T T 7T
Unlisted shares, at cost JEEMMMD - B 5,925 =
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12. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 12. MB AR ZK/E (&)
(Continued)
The following list contains the particulars of TREFHAEELXE - &
subsidiaries which affected the results, assets or EXBEEMTE 2B A A
liabilities of the Group. The class of shares held 2B -BRIESHETAR FH
is ordinary unless otherwise stated. RO BENAERR -
Percentage of equity
REEDI
Group's held by Issued/ Principal activity
Name of Place of effective the held by registered  and place of
company incorporation holding Company  subsidiary capital operations
FEEZ MALNE HHELAR BRE/ IEXHR
NEER at M A 3L 30 B BERrRE 87 2] ERRA BEws
INNO-TECH
TOLDINGS Cyberliving British Virgin 100% 100% - US$14,000  Investment
:@‘ gu | %TE Eﬂg Holdings Islands ("BVI") holding in
E R A A Limited Hong Kong
 EY ARABER REBRLES 140000 REHERK FE
ARAA ((RBRLEE])
ANNUAL
REPORT
02/03 & Cyberliving Hong Kong 100% - 100% HK$4 Leasing of
(Hong Kong) office premises
Co Limited
AR N 48T HERRENR
(%)
ARAA
Cyberinfo Hong Kong 100% - 100% HK$6 Provision of
Management management
Limited and maintenance
of network
Services
AR N 6B T REBERE
BEEERAA EERRE
Ying Wai BVI 100% = 100% US$1 Investment
Trading holding in
Limited Hong Kong

ABRAES Er REZK  BR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B % W® xR M &
INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 12. MBARZHE @)
(Continued)
Percentage of equity
REBDI
Group's held by Issued/ Principal activity
Name of Place of effective the held by registered  and place of
company incorporation holding Company  subsidiary capital operations
FEEZ MALNE HHELAR BT/ IEXHR
NEER at M A 3L 3t B BERrRE 87 2] ERRA BE2ws
Leading Pro BVI 100% = 100% US$1 Investment
Trading holding in
Limited Hong Kong
RERAEE e REZR - BA
Cyberworks Hong Kong 100% - 100% HK$4 Provision of
Technology systems design
Limited and integration
Services
AR N 48T REZGRTR
BRERDA BaR%
Cyberweb Hong Kong 100% - 100% HK$4 Provision of
Services e-commerce
Limited services
RAREBRE FA 48T REEFHERS
BERAA
INVENTORIES 13. BE
2003 2002
—FEZ=HF —TE_F
HK$'000 HK$'000
T#ET FET
Spares and consumables B & &E S 1,700 =

P
= s

INNO-TECH
HOLDINGS
LIMITED
E oAl 7 R
A R 2 7
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fy &

Bank deposits of HK$10,000,000 (2002:
HK$3,500,000) as at 31 March 2003 were
pledged against banking facilities granted to the
Group.

Y
14. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 14. EYWER X
Customers are generally granted with credit terms AEB-RETEP 2=
of one to three months. An ageing analysis of the AEEH  BURER KRR
accounts receivable (net of provisions for bad and BRER)REKSTAOT :
doubtful debts) is as follows:
2003 2002
—EEE=H —EE_F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ERT FHET
Current B EA 3,000 3,476
Aged over 1 month but His—EA
less than 3 months BLR=1EA 5,263 4,334
INNO-TECH Aged over 3 months i@ = & A 5,785 -
HOLDINGS
LI MITED 14,048 7,810
E Al E K
£ B 2 §
I 8 6 15. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 15. BRMRE - EZERHEM
AN UL RECEIVABLES J& U =k I8
REPORT Included in “Prepayments, deposits and other [FERRIE - Be Rk HEfb &Y
02/03 &% receivables” are funds totalling HK$2,004,717 RE|DEFERITESRE K
which represent cash at bank in the PRC. The 2,004, 71748 7T - BB ITER
relevant bank accounts were opened in the name FPTUAARRRETERITEHA
of certain senior officers of the Company, which BrzEBERRK  WHZIFTH
are held by these officers to facilitate certain ABRBENFTBETEARFE
projects of the Company in the PRC. THEIER -
16. PLEDGED DEPOSITS 16. AIRHEFE

R_ZEE=ZF=ZA=Z+—85A
£010,000,0008 L (=& Z =
& : 3,500,000 7L) ZR1TF
HREMAEEERZBITHE
;AR o



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

+ 23
B % #H; Fx K =
L ol
17. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 17. BERBEEEY
The Group The Company
3 - | /NG|
2003 2002 2003 2002
BT E | _TT_F |ZBF=E| T2 _F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT THL FET THT
Deposits with banks and RITRAME B
other financial AEE
institutions 39 1,835 - -
Cash at bank and in hand RITEBRNES 1,437 20 10 =
Cash and cash equivalents  JIREEBEXRZ
in the balance sheet BekBeEEY 1,476 1,855 10 =
Bank overdraft (Note 18) |ITEX (MiF18) (1,999) (3,502) ‘HNONLOD’ |Tnf E E
Cash and cash equivalents  FIREGERERERZ LﬁE‘ I\;u | ;; E Hg
in the consolidated ReRkAEEEY 5 R 2 A
cash flow statement (522) (1,647) 87 S
18. BANK LOANS AND OVERDRAFTS 18. SRITERREX R
At 31 March 2003, bank loans and overdrafts of E’\ T2E=F=ZA=+—H " 02 /03 &%

HK$13,753,000 (2002: HK$3,502,000) were all
repayable within one year on demand.

At 31 March 2003, the bank loans and overdrafts

were secured as follows:

A813,753,0008 (-2 F
— £ :3,502,000/87) 2R 1T
ERERBEIHER —FARE
SKEE o

F:;;:i_ﬂ_+ H R
ERRBL 2HEBBERAT -

The Group
A&
2003 2002
—EFE=F —EE_F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHETT
Secured bank overdrafts BEEFBETEX
(Note 17) (M7E17) 1,998 3,502
Bank loans |ITERK
— secured — A 11,000 =
— unsecured — A 755 -
13,753 3,502
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o ames
18. BANK LOANS AND OVERDRAFTS 18. S|RITERREZ (&)

(Continued)

The banking overdraft facility and the bank loans RZZEE=F=R=+—8"

are secured by a time deposit of HK$10,000,000 RITBETME NIEITERTIM

as at 31 March 2003 (2002: HK$3,500,000). E HITE 310,000,000 T {E K
H(ZZTZ —F : 3,500,000%
TT) e

RETIREMENT BENEFITS 19. RIKEF

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund AEERBEEARSIEAES

Scheme (“the MPF scheme”) under the Hong &R B BN E B B = & fl A

Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes BRVEERANEBERAZEEEH

Ordinance for employees employed under the mE Mt AEeE ([BESG

jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment gll) - BERTER—EHE

INNO-TECH Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined JEFRABEZ ERBEITRAK

HOLDINGS
LI MITED
E oAl 7 R

contribution retirement scheme administered by
independent trustees. The Group participates in a

itEl e ARE2HERHIERTE
T ([BEER])  BESHBL

= b= A Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF"), managed by RABBEEFEABE - BIE
I S 8 independently approved MPF trustees. Under the wiEesitE  BEERHEEED
PR MPF scheme, the employer and its employees Al EREE B BAW A Z5%1H
REPORT are each required to make contributions to the ® o FRABABEBEKA
02/03 &R scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, 20,000 7T ° stEl 2tz — 8

subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
HK$20,000. Contributions to the scheme vest
immediately.

EHBIERNEEMA -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B % ¥ x K ==
SHARE CAPITAL 20. BB &
The following is a summary of movements in the ATRARRBIZIEERE ELT
authorised and issued share capital of the BAZESHFHBEHRE :
Company:
2003 2002
“EFZE “TT-F
No. of No. of
shares shares
BHeE Bt 88
('000)  HK$'000 (000)  HK$'000
(FR) THER (Fi&) TAET
Authorised: AT
Ordinary shares of FREME001ET
HK$0.01 each LR 10,000,000 100,000 10,000 100
Issued and fully paid: EETRER
At 1 April RMA—H 14 109 11 87
Capital elimination on FERA R
consolidation i 38 R R (19 (109) - -
Issuance of shares (Note (ii))) 1T (K =E(iii)) 30,000 300 3 22
Capitalisation issue (Note (iv)) EALET (M E(v)) 354,000 3,540 - -
Issuance of shares HEEET
for placement (Note (v)) B (HEE(v)) 84,000 840 - -
Issuance of shares for HARBERTRG
public offer (Note (vi)) (B EE(vi)) 12,000 120 - -
At 31 March R=ZA=+—8H 480,000 4,800 14 109
Notes: B s -
0 The share capital in the consolidated balance () RZTEZF=H=+—
sheet as at 31 March 2002 represents the HEECZHEEERARR
combined share capital of the companies FTR 2B AN $5 M Ak A~ & &

(if)

comprising the Group as at 31 March 2002.

Pursuant to the written resolution of the sole
shareholder of the Company dated 5 July 2002,
the authorised share capital of the Company was
increased to HK$100 million by creation of
additional 9,990 million shares of HK$0.01 each,
ranking pari passu with the existing shares of
the Company.

(i)

ZANK-EE=%=A
=+ — Rz A bR -

BEANDAME—RER =
TE_FtLtARAZE@™
REBER AAREHR
9,990,000,000/% & A% M (&
0.01BTTZBG » 1T
f% 75 3 % 100,000,000 #
R & = NN B =
BHZ=EREER o

INNO-TECH
HOLDINGS
LIMITED
E oAl 7 R
A R 2 7
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

%

20. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

i)

(iv)

)

(vi)

As part of the Reorganisation, the Company
issued 30 million shares of HK$0.01 each,
credited as fully paid shares at par pursuant to
the written resolution of the sole shareholder of

July 2002, as
consideration for the acquisition of the entire

the Company dated 5

share capital of Cyberliving Holdings Limited.

On 5 July 2002, an amount of HK$3,540,000
standing to the credit of the share premium
account was applied, conditional on the share
premium account of the Company being credited
as a result of the placing of shares issued upon
the listing of the Company's shares on the GEM
of the Stock Exchange, in paying up in full at
par 354 million shares of HK$0.01 each which
were allotted and credited as fully paid to the
then shareholders pursuant to their respective

equity percentages.

On 8 August 2002, 84,000,000 new shares of
HK$0.01 each were issued and offered for
placement at a price of HK$0.28 per share upon
the listing of the Company's shares on the GEM
of the Stock Exchange. The Group raised
HK$13,250,125 net of related expenses from
the issue.

On 8 August 2002, 12,000,000 new shares of
HK$0.01 each were issued and offered to the
public of HK$0.28 per share upon the listing of
the Company's shares on the GEM of the
Exchange. The Group raised HK$1,892,875 net

of related expenses from the issue.

wOR

s

2
At

20. B &)

(iii)

(iv)

)

(vi)

RARIBEEME—RER
—EEFLtARAZE

H R &% % % 17 30,000,000
B F R EE0.01% T 2 iR
7 (@ E A K EH
) v 1E R U R S
BRERDAZHE FHTR
RZRE -

RZZFEZTE=ZF+LHAH -
i& 0 % B R 2 #E B A E
3,540,000% 7tz % IE (A
AN QAR 10 72 B 32 P Bl 3
R _E TR 81T BG S AR 9
FTARRDAE 2K G0 ER)
B AE&E 354,000,000
SR EME.01B T Z MG
ZHEHME ZERMHIBE
ERRREEZRER S
LbBE B T 1R E 30 A BR 51 4

7R A &) Bk 19 78 5 2 P Al
%ﬁiimﬁq S N/NICT -
84,000,0000% &= % ® &
0.01% T 2 3 R 15 I # =2
REZEENHIRER0.28
BILZBRES - A5 E
#£1513,250,125% 7t (B 40
RETZEBEEBER) -

NV NN &) Eﬁ%xﬁﬁéu
%Wimh’$“7&§
fgo0.28% LM AR A+ B
17 &2 2% % 12,000,000
B F R EE0.01% T 2 ¥
o AEBEEITRA
m&51,892,875% 7T (B
NkAEBERx) -
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20 SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

(vii)

Share option scheme

The Company conditionally adopted a share
option scheme on 5 July 2002 whereby any
employees (whether or not full-time or part-
time) and any consultant or adviser who, at the
sole discretion of the board, subject to the terms
of the share option scheme, contributed to the
Group, may be granted options to subscribe for
shares in the Company. For the year ended 31
March 2003, no options under the scheme have
been exercised. Details of the share option

scheme are disclosed in the Directors’ Report.

The maximum number of shares in respect of
which options may be granted under the Scheme

must not exceed 10% of the shares in issue.

ELY
At

20. PR 7K ¢a)

(vii)

i AR 7 51 &

ARRABIR_ZEZE_F+ A
FEEBERERMN—IEER
EEE B ERES
(Tim 2Bk /B ) KA
BB S ER (fE B AR
HEIZKERT HEFS®
THNERREAEEE
B BRE) 15 AT B R AR
NRERDARKRGD - BE
—_ZE=F=ZHA=+—H
IEFE » ZEFETHE
BREEITE - BARER
BloHBREZTERER

% .

RIBZET 8 X L 2 B
ARABZEOEE &%
TEBBEEEITERMDZ
10% °

et [
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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21. RESERVES 21. #E
(@) The Group (a) &£
Retained
profits/
Share Contributed (Accumulated
premium surplus losses) Total
RE&EH/
RiiiE MAER (RRER) 4

HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'0000
THAT THAT THAT THAT

At 1 April 2001 R-ZE-5MA-F - 4228 (4,249) Q1)
Arising from share exchange REBRAMESE - 1,588 - 1,588
INNO-TECH Profit for the year RERET - - 10,882 10,882
HOLDINGS
DD U ED At 31 March 2002 R-ZE_F
E fﬁ‘j i HQ =R=+-H - 5,816 6,633 12,449
I © 2 At 1 April 2002 R-Z2-£MA—A - 5,816 6,633 12,449
ANNUAL Premium arising from the NAEERRERD
REPORT public offer and placement i 2 4 % B
DRSS of shares (Note 20(v) & (vi)) (B3 20(v) R(vi) ) 25,920 - - 25,920
Capitalisation issue BER{LET
(Note 20(iv)) (B3 20(v)) (3,540) - - (3,540)
Shares issuance expenses RiD BT X (11,737) - - (11,737)
Elimination on Reorganisation ~ HEAY# - (5,816) - (5,816)
Arising from the Reorganisation ~ EEZHESE - 5,625 - 5,625
Profit for the year KEERHN - - 7,563 7563
Dividend approved during AEFHELHA
the year prior to listing LIRS - - (4,000) (4,000)
At 31 March 2003 R-ZF=F
=A=t-H 10,643 5,625 10,196 26,464




21.

(b)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MO B & KO
RESERVES (Continued) 21. 4% @)
The Company Y UNES|
Share Contributed Accumulated
premium surplus losses Total
BRHEE BNEHR REESR m st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THET THET TAERT
Premium arising from the TREEREE
public offer and placement B3 ME £ & E
of shares (Note 20(v) (HEE20(v)
& (vi)) B (vi)) 25,920 - - 25920
Capitalisation issue BB
(Note 20(iv)) (FaE20(v)) (3,540) - - (3,540)
Shares issuance expenses  RAEITHAY 11,737) - - (11,737)
Arising from the RE@EE
Reorganisation - 5,625 - 5,625
Loss for the year AEEER - - (902) (902)
At 31 March 2003 M_Ezzi
A=+—8H 10,643 5,625 (902) 15,366

The application of the share premium
account is governed by Bye-Law 140(A) of
the Company’s Bye-Law and the Companies
Act 1981 of Bermuda (“Companies Act").

Pursuant to the Reorganisation during the
year, the Company became the holding
company of the Group on 5 July 2002.
The excess of the consolidated net assets
represented by the shares acquired over
the nominal value of the shares issued by
the Company in exchanged under the
Reorganisation during the year was
transferred to contributed surplus.
Contributed surplus is available for
distribution to shareholders subjected to the
provision of section 54 of the Companies
Act.

R mERERXE

RAal 2z ABAIZE140(A)

ﬂ%&ﬁ%i*h/\*ﬁ
ANAEE([RARE]) B

”SE: o

BREAFEHETZE
B ARAR—_EEE -
FLtARABRALAER
ZIEER AT o WHER D
Fifhir 6 EEFEB L
RARRRAFEERETE
BRI ETRG 2
EAEZE  HBEAZA
Bk o LR REF 54K
BEXZHREBT  BAR
FRAIMEE DR AR ©
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22. COMMITMENTS 22. K& iE
(i) Operating leases commitments (iy RWEHHKIE
The Group had total future minimum lease REBERPHAEWELT
payments under non-cancellable operating S Z A EELD
leases in respect of office premises as ZBRZEMEERER
follows: BT
2003 2002
—FF=H —ETF
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ERT FHET
Within 1 year —FR 483 169
After 1 year but within —FREAFA
INNO-TECH 5 years - 141
HOLDINGS
LI M ITED 483 310
E Al E K
£ B 2 §
The Group leases a number of properties AREERBERLEHEOMAE
I © 4 under operating leases. The leases typically EZEWME - M —K
ANNUAL run for an initial period of one to two years, MERB—ZEZEMEF - M
REPORT with an option to renew the lease when all WEmESAEREEREDY
U2 108 s terms are renegotiated. None of the leases I B E TR R e
includes contingent rentals. ZERALEBITELA
e o
(ii) Capital commitments (i) BEERKIE
Capital commitments outstanding at 31 RZEZE=F=H=+
March 2003 not provided for in the financial — B EAREEMILARD
statements of the Group were as follows: REBZUHBRKRERS
ZEREENT :
2003 2002
—FEZ=HF —TE-F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ERT FHET
Contracted for SRS 11,534 1,421
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B % | K M &

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 23.
The following represents a summary of material
transactions during the year between the Group

HELTRXS

AEEESEMBRZBES
RAFERETZEARZH

and related parties identified by the directors: ZWH
2003 2002
—EFE=H —EE_F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 5 F#ET FAT
Design fee received B R E 0) 900 -
Consultancy fee paid EfERE (i) 560 -

Notes: Bt st -

()  This represents payments received from (M 1AL N S 1 el o ey

Proactive Medicare Enterprise (Hong Kong)
Limited (“Proactive Medicare”) for design
services provided by the Group. Mr. Wong Yao
Wing, Robert, a director of the Company, is a
director and a beneficial shareholder of Proactive

Medicare.

(i) Consultancy fee was paid to Mr Chow Kam Wing,
a director of a subsidiary, for the provision of

advisory services over software development.

The directors of the Company are of the opinion
that the above transactions with related parties
were conducted on normal commercial terms and
in the ordinary course of business.

(i)

7% 2 W Proactive Medicare
Enterprise (Hong Kong)
Limited( [ Proactive
Medicare ]) 2 FIE o XA
Proactive Medicarez & =

FEfE B T B2 R M R
B2ERARB XN TAEAS
KEE (—FKHBRARZE
F) o

ARRMEERL  HEETA
Y2 ERRBTIRAERBB
RHRREREERERET -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24.

%

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

The presentation and classification of items in the
consolidated cash flow statement have been
changed due to the adoption of the requirements
of SSAP 15 (revised) 2001 “Cash flow statement”.
As a result, cash flow items from taxation, returns
on investments and servicing of finance have been
classified into operating, investing and financing
activities respectively and a detailed breakdown
of cash flows from operating activities has been
included on the face of the consolidated cash
flow statement. Comparative figures have been
reclassified to conform to the current year’s
presentation.

In order to comply with revised requirements of
SSAP 1 (revised), the Group adopts the new
statement “consolidated statement of changes in
equity” which replaces the “consolidated statement
of recognised gains and losses” included in
previous financial statements.

wOR

24.

fy &

tE &&=

HRERMNS T EBERE 15%
(RZZEZE—FEB)[RER
EXRIZHAE HEAeBEERE
FNBEZ2VWESELTRE
FTEd - At - B - REMD
WEMBERz2EeRERE
ERRlnEAREE  REKR
BEB MEEEBZBEERN
EZHBOMEREEEA SR
ERXAN - ARBEFTEEFHT
R UFEAFEZENA

REASHERERE R (K
B cBREERE A KH
R R 4R & IR B2 B) oy
DA B DA 7 SR B 75 K
ZIFEEHRBEERTE
=] e



